

THE CITY RECORD

Official Journal of The City of New York

Printed on paper containing 40% post-consumer material

VOLUME CXL NUMBER 208

MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2013

PRICE \$4.00

THE CITY RECORD

TABLE OF CONTENTS				
PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS				
Board Meetings				
City Planning Commission				
Community Boards				
Landmarks Preservation Commission3054				
Parks and Recreation				
Transportation				
PROPERTY DISPOSITION				
Citywide Administrative Services 3055				
Asset Management3055				

Office of Citywide Purchasing 3056
Police
PROCUREMENT
City University
Citywide Administrative Services $\dots.3056$
Office of Citywide Purchasing3056
Vendor Lists
Comptroller
Asset Management
Consumer Affairs
Design and Construction3057

Environmental Protection3057
Wastewater Treatment
Financial Information Services Agency .3057
Fire
Health and Hospitals Corporation 3057
Housing Authority
Purchasing
Human Resources Administration 3057
Agency Chief Contracting Officer3057
Contract Management
Parks and Recreation
Revenue and Concessions

Youth and Community Development 3058
AGENCY RULES
Taxi and Limousine Commission 3058
SPECIAL MATERIALS
Administration for Children's Services .3058
City Planning
Landmarks Preservation Commission3059
Changes in Personnel
LATE NOTICES
Environmental Protection
Parks and Recreation
Administration for Children's Services .3067
READER'S GUIDE

THE CITY RECORD

MICHAEL R. BLOOMBERG, Mayor

EDNA WELLS HANDY, Commissioner, Department of Citywide Administrative Services. **ELI BLACHMAN,** Editor of The City Record.

Published Monday through Friday, except legal holidays by the Department of Citywide Administrative Services of the City of New York under Authority of Section 1066 of the New York City Charter.

Subscription–\$500 a year; daily, \$4.00 a copy (\$5.00 by mail) POSTMASTER: Send address changes to THE CITY RECORD, 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10007 - 1602

Editorial Office 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor New York N.Y. 10007-1602 Telephone (212) 669-8252

Subscription Changes/Information 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor New York N.Y. 10007-1602 Telephone (212) 669-8252

The City of New York Home Page provides Internet access via the world wide web to THE DAILY CITY RECORD http://www.nyc.gov/cityrecord

Periodicals Postage Paid at New York, N.Y.

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND

See Also: Procurement; Agency Rules

BOARD MEETINGS

■ NOTICE OF MEETINGS

MEETINGS

City Planning Commission

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, New York, New York 10007, twice monthly on Wednesday, at 10:00 A.M., unless otherwise ordered by the Commission.

City Council

Meets by Charter twice a month in Councilman's Chamber, City Hall, Manhattan, New York 10007, at 1:30 P.M.

Contract Awards Public Hearing

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, weekly, on Thursday, commencing 10:00 A.M.,

and other days, times and location as warranted.
Civilian Complaint Review Board

Generally meets at 10:00 A.M. on the second Wednesday of each month at 40 Rector Street, 2nd Floor, New York, NY 10006. Visit http://www.nyc.gov/html/ccrb/html/meeting.html for additional information and scheduling changes. Design Commission

Meets at City Hall, Third Floor, New York, New York 10007. For meeting schedule, please visit nyc.gov/designcommission or call (212) 788-3071.

Department of Education

Meets in the Hall of the Board for a monthly business meeting on the Third Wednesday, of each month at 6:00 P.M. The Annual Meeting is held on the first Tuesday of July at 10:00

Board of Elections

32 Broadway, 7th Floor, New York, NY 10004, on Tuesday, at 1:30 P.M. and at the call of the Commissioner.

Environmental Control Board

Meets at 40 Rector Street, OATH Lecture Room, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10006 at 9:15 A.M., once a month at the call of the Chairman.

Board of Health

Meets in Room 330, 125 Worth Street, Manhattan, New York 10013, at 10:00 A.M., at the call of the Chairman.

Health Insurance Board

Meets in Room 530, Municipal Building, Manhattan, New York 10007, at call of the Chairman.

Board of Higher Education Meets at 535 East 80th Street, Manhattan, New York 10021, at 5:30 P.M., on fourth Monday in January, February, March, April, June, September, October, November and December.

Annual meeting held on fourth Monday in May. Citywide Administrative Services

Division Of Citywide Personnel Services will hold hearings as needed in Room 2203, 2 Washington Street, New York, N.Y.

Commission on Human Rights

Meets on 10th floor in the Commission's Central Office, 40 Rector Street, New York, New York 10006, on the fourth Wednesday of each month, at 8:00 A.M.

In Rem Foreclosure Release Board

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, Monthly on Tuesdays, commencing 10:00 A.M., and other days, times and location as warranted.

Franchise And Concession Review Committee

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, Monthly on Wednesdays, commencing 2:30 P.M., and other days, times and location as warranted.

Real Property Acquisition And Disposition Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, bi-weekly, on Wednesdays, commencing 10:00 A.M., and other days, times and location as warranted.

Landmarks Preservation Commission

Meets in the Hearing Room, Municipal Building, 9th Floor North, 1 Centre Street in Manhattan on approximately three Tuesday's each month, commencing at 9:30 A.M. unless otherwise noticed by the Commission. For current meeting dates, times and agendas, please visit our website at www.nyc.gov/landmarks.

Employees' Retirement System

Meets in the Boardroom, 22nd Floor, 335 Adams Street, Brooklyn, New York 11201, at 9:30 A.M., on the third Thursday of each month, at the call of the Chairman.

Parole Commission

Meets at its office, 100 Centre Street, Manhattan, New York 10013, on Thursday, at 10:30 A.M.

Board of Revision of Awards

Meets in Room 603, Municipal Building, Manhattan, New York 10007, at the call of the Chairman.

Board of Standards and Appeals Meets at 40 Rector Street, 6th Floor, Hearing Room "E" on

Tuesdays at 10:00 A.M. Review Sessions begin at 9:30 A.M. and are customarily held on Mondays preceding a Tuesday public hearing in the BSA conference room on the 9th Floor of 40 Rector Street. For changes in the schedule, or additional information, please call the Application Desk at (212) 513-4670 or consult the bulletin board at the Board's Offices, at 40 Rector Street, 9th Floor.

Tax Commission

Meets in Room 936, Municipal Building, Manhattan, New York 10007, each month at the call of the President.

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT RESOLUTIONS Have been adopted by the City Planning Commission Scheduling public hearings on the following matters to be held in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, New York, NY, on Wednesday, November 6, 2013 at 10:00 A.M.

> BOROUGH OF THE BRONX Nos. 1 & 2 ST. PATRICK'S HOME No. 1

C 110102 ZSX

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by St. Patrick's Home for the Aged and Infirm pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit pursuant to Section 74-90 of the Zoning Resolution to allow a 4-story enlargement of an existing 8story nursing home on property located at 66 Van Cortlandt Park South (Block 3252, Lot 76) in an R7-1 District.

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen in Room 3N, 22 Reade Street, New York, NY 10007.

C 140051 ZSX IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by St.

Patrick's Home for the Aged and Infirm pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit pursuant to Section 74-90 of the Zoning Resolution to legalize a 260-bed nursing home within an existing 8-story building on property located at 66 Van Cortlandt Park South (Block 3252, Lot 76) in an R7-1 District.

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen in Room 3N, 22 Reade Street, New York, NY 10007.

Nos. 3 & 4 ARTSBRIDGE No. 3

C 140044 PQX IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the

Department of Housing Preservation and Development, pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter, for the acquisition of property located at 1448 Plimpton Avenue (Block 2874, Lot 27).

No. 4

C 140045 HAX

 ${\bf IN}\ {\bf THE}\ {\bf MATTER}\ {\bf OF}$ an application submitted by the Department of Housing Preservation and Development

pursuant to Article 16 of the General Municipal Law of New York State for:

> the designation of property located at 1446-1458 Plimpton Avenue (Block 2874, Lots 3, 6, 8 and part of 10) as an Urban Development Action Area; and

b) an Urban Development Action Area Project for such area; and

2) pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter for the disposition of Block 2874, Lots 3, 6, 8, 27 and part of 10, to a developer to be selected by

to facilitate the construction of a seven-story senior residence with approximately 61 dwelling units and community facility space.

BOROUGH OF QUEENS No. 5 DISPOSITION OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the

Department of Citywide Administrative Services (DCAS), pursuant to Section 197-c of New York City Charter, for the disposition of four (4) city-owned properties located at Block 5281, Lot 113, Block 4971, Lot 32, Block 3935, Lot 101 and Block 4699, Lot 32, pursuant to zoning.

No. 6 DISPOSITION OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY **CD 7**

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of Citywide Administrative Services (DCAS). pursuant to Section 197-c of New York City Charter, for the disposition of one city-owned property located at 135-15 40th Road (Block 5036, Lot 50), pursuant to zoning.

No. 7 OZONE PARK REZONING

C 140079 ZMQ

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the City of New York Department of City Planning pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the amendment of the Zoning Map, Section Nos. 18a, 18b, 18c and 18d:

A. CD 9

CD 9 & 10

eliminating from within an existing R4A District a C1-2 District bounded by a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and 133rd Street:

2. eliminating from within an existing R5 District a C1-2 District bounded by:

- a. a line 150 feet southeasterly of Atlantic
 Avenue, a line midway between 83rd
 Street and 84th Street, a line 280 feet
 southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, 84th
 Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of
 95th Avenue, and 83rd Street;
- b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 93rd Street; and
- c. a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, Liberty Avenue, 133rd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and 135th Street;
- 3. eliminating from within an existing R3-1 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
 - a. 91st Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 77th Street, and Rockaway Boulevard; and
 - b. a line 150 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 150 feet northerly of Atlantic Avenue, 81st Street, Atlantic Avenue, Rockaway Boulevard, and 79th
- 4. eliminating from within an existing R4-1 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
 - a. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st
 Avenue, 103rd Street, a line 150
 southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and a line
 midway between 102nd Street and 101st
 Street;
 - b. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st
 Avenue, a line midway between 105th
 Street and 106th Street, a line 100 feet
 northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and 102nd
 Street; and
 - c. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st
 Avenue, a line midway between 112th
 Street and 113th Street, a line 150 feet
 southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 105th
 Street;
- 5. eliminating from within an existing R4A District a C2-2 District bounded by:
 - a. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st
 Avenue, 127th Street, a line 100 feet
 northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and a line
 midway between 10th Street and 106th
 Street;
 - b. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and 130th Street;
 - c. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 130th Street; and
 - d. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st
 Avenue, 127th Street, a line 150
 southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and a line
 midway between 113th Street and 112th
 Street;
- 6. eliminating from within an existing R5 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
 - a. Rockaway Boulevard, Atlantic Avenue, a line 150 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 75th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 93rd Avenue, Eldert Lane, a line 150 feet northerly of 91st Avenue, and a line 100 feet easterly of Eldert Lane;
 - b. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st
 Avenue, 86th Street, Rockaway
 Boulevard, 87th Street, a line 150 feet
 northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard,
 88th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly
 of 101st Avenue, 89th Street, Rockaway
 Boulevard, 88th Street, a line midway
 between 101st Avenue and 102nd Avenue,
 81st Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly
 of 101st Avenue, 77th Street, Liberty
 Avenue, and Drew Street;
 - c. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st
 Avenue, 102nd Street, a line 100 feet
 northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 127th
 Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of
 101st Avenue, 105th Street, 101st
 Avenue, 103rd Street, a line 100 feet
 southeasterly of 101st Avenue, a line
 midway between 102nd Street and 101st
 Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of
 101st Avenue, 101st Street, 101st
 Avenue, and 100th Street; and
 - d. a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 130th Street
- 7. changing from an R5 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:

- a. 95th Avenue, 78th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 77th Street and 78th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 76th Street and 77th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, and 76th Street;
- b. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th
 Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of
 Rockaway Boulevard, Digby Place, 97th
 Avenue, 84th Street, a line 100 feet
 southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line 100
 feet southwesterly of Rockaway
 Boulevard, 85th Street, a line 300 feet
 northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 86th
 Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of
 101st Avenue, a line midway between
 81st Street and 82nd Street, a line 100
 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 81st
 Street, 97th Avenue, and a line midway
 between 80th Street and 81st Street;
- c. Atlantic Avenue, 86th Street, 95th
 Avenue, 85th Street, a line 100 feet
 northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard,
 95th Avenue, 83rd Street, a line 175 feet
 southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, and
 82nd Street;
- a line 200 feet southeasterly of 95th d. Avenue, 89th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, a line midway between 89th Street and 90th Street, a line 50 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, 90th Street, 95th Avenue, a line midway between 91st Street and 92nd Street, a line 75 feet northwesterly of 97th Avenue, 91st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 92nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, a line midway between 93rd Street and 94th Street, 95th Avenue, 96th Street, Atlantic Avenue, a line 115 feet northeasterly of 96th Street, a line 190 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, 97th Street, a line 260 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 97th Street, 95th Avenue, 98th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 88th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 350 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 87th Street, a line 50 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly
- e. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st
 Avenue, 88th Street, 102nd Avenue, 89th
 Street, 102nd Road, 90th Street, a line
 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway
 Boulevard, 103rd Avenue, and a line 200
 feet southwesterly of 86th Street;

of 97th Avenue, and 86th Street;

- f. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 97th Street and 98th Street, 103rd Avenue, 92nd Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 90th Street;
- g. a line 100 feet northwesterly 103rd Avenue, 114th Street, a line 90 feet northwesterly of 103rd Avenue, 127th Street, 103rd Avenue, and a line midway between 101st Street and 102nd Street; and
- h. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st
 Avenue, a line midway between 102nd
 Street and 101st Street, a line 150 feet
 southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 101st
 Street;
- 8. changing from a C8-1 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by 82nd Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue;
- 9. changing from an R5 District to an R4B District property bounded by:
 - Rockaway Boulevard, 75th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 75th Street and 76th Street, a line perpendicular to the westerly street line of 76th Street distant 115 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Rockaway Boulevard and the westerly street line of 76th Street, 76th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard. 78th Street, Atlantic Avenue, 78th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, a line 50 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, 81st Street, 95th Avenue, 76th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 97th Avenue, 75th Street, a line 120 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, Drew Street, 95th Avenue, and Eldert Lane; and
 - b. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 78th

Street and 80th Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 81st Street and 82nd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and a line midway between 77th Street and 78th Street;

- 10. changing from an R5 District to an R5B District property bounded by:
 - a line 100 feet northwesterly of 97th Avenue, 76th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 76th Street and 77th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and 75th Street;
 - b. 95th Avenue, 82nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, 97th Avenue, 81st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 78th Street and 80th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, and 78th Street; and
 - c. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 81st Street, Liberty Avenue, and 77th Street;
- 11. changing from an R3-1 District to an R6B District property bounded by 79th Street, a line perpendicular to the westerly street line of 80th Street distant 70 feet northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the westerly street line of 80th Street, 80th Street, a line perpendicular to the easterly street line of 80th Street line of 80th Street distant 80 feet northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the easterly street line of 80th Street, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, Atlantic Avenue, and Rockaway Boulevard;
- 12. changing from an R5 District to an R6B District property bounded by:
 - a. Rockaway Boulevard, Atlantic Avenue,
 78th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly
 of Rockaway Boulevard, 76th Street, a
 line perpendicular to the westerly street
 line of 76th Street distant 115 feet
 southerly (as measured along the street
 line) from the point of intersection of the
 westerly street line of 76th Street and the
 southwesterly street line of Rockaway
 Boulevard, a line midway between 75th
 Street and 76th Street, a line 100 feet
 southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard,
 and 75th Street;
 - a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway
 Boulevard, 81st Street, a line 50 feet
 northwesterly of 95th Avenue, and a line
 midway between 80th Street and 81st
 Street:
 - a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, 83rd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, and a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard;
 - 95th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly d. of Rockaway Boulevard, 85th Street, 97th Avenue, 86th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, a line 50 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 87th Street, a line 350 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue. line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 88th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 101st Street, 101st Avenue, 100th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 90th Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 92nd Street, 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 90th Street, 102nd Road, 89th Street, 102nd Avenue, 88th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 77th Street, Liberty Avenue, Drew Street, a line 120 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 75th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 86th Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 85th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 84th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and the southeasterly centerline prolongation of 83rd Street:
 - e. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, the Van Wyck Expressway, Liberty Avenue, and 133rd Street; and

- Digby Place, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 97th Avenue;
- 13. changing from a C8-1 District to an R6B District property bounded by Atlantic Avenue, 82nd Street, a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, 83rd Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 84th Street, 97th Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 82nd Street, 95th Avenue, 81st Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, and 78th Street;
- 14. changing from an M1-2 District to an R6B District property bounded by 101st Avenue, 101st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 100th Street:
- establishing within an existing R5 District a C1-3 15. District bounded by 95th Avenue, a line midway between 93rd Street and 94th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, and a line midway between 91st Street and 92nd Street;
- establishing within an existing R3-1 District a C2-3 $\,$ 16. District bounded by 91st Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 77th Street, and Rockaway Boulevard;
- 17. establishing within an existing R4A District a C2-3 District bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street;
- establishing within an existing R5 District a C2-3 18. District bounded by Atlantic Avenue, 88th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, and 86th Street:
- establishing within a proposed R6B District a C2-3 19. District bounded by:
 - Rockaway Boulevard, 79th Street, a line a. perpendicular to the westerly street line of 80th Street distant 70 feet northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the westerly street line of 80th Street, 80th Street, a line perpendicular to the easterly street line of 80th Street distant 80 feet northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the easterly street line of 80th Street, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, Atlantic Avenue, 82nd Street, a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, 83rd Street, 95th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 85th Street, 97th Avenue, 86th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, a line 50 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 87th Street, a line 350 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line 75 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line 75 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 88th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 90th Street, 101st Avenue, 91st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 93rd Street, 101st Avenue, 94th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 90th Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 91st Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 90th Street, 102nd Road, 89th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 88th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 77th Street, Liberty Avenue, Drew Street, a line 120 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 75th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 86th Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 85th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 84th Street, 97th Avenue, Digby Place, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 82nd Street, 95th Avenue, 81st Street, a line 50 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, 78th Street, Atlantic Avenue, 78th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 76th Street, a line perpendicular to the westerly street line of 76th Street distant 115 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the westerly street line of 76th Street and the southwesterly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 75th Street and 76th Street, a line 100 feet

southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard,

and 75th Street;

- b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 105th Street, 101st Avenue, 103rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 100th Street; and
- a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty c. Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, Liberty Avenue, and 133rd Street;

CD 10

- eliminating from within an existing R3-2 District a C1-2 District bounded by:
 - a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 127th Street, Liberty Avenue, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street; and
 - b. Liberty Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and 134th Street;
- eliminating from within an existing R4 District a C1-2 District bounded by:
 - a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway a. Boulevard, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 98th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, 107th Avenue, a line midway between 93rd Street and Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and Woodhaven Boulevard:
 - a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty b. Avenue, 118th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and 111th Street;
 - a line 150 feet northwesterly of 111th c. Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Lefferts Boulevard, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 111th Avenue, 118th Street, 111th Avenue, and Lefferts Boulevard:
 - d. 109th Avenue, 107th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 108th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, Centreville Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and the southeasterly centerline prolongation of 106th Street;
 - 134th Avenue, the northerly centerline e. prolongation of 94th Street, Linden Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, and Cross Bay Boulevard; and
 - Pitkin Avenue, 86th Street, a line 150 feet f. southerly of Pitkin Avenue, and 84th Street;
- eliminating from within an existing R5 District a C1-2 District bounded by:
 - a line 265 feet northerly of Liberty a. Avenue, 98th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 98th Street and 97th Street; and
 - a line perpendicular to the southwesterly b. street line of 94th Street distant 225 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southeasterly street line of 103rd Avenue and the southwesterly street line 94th Street, 94th Street, and Rockaway Boulevard;
- eliminating from within an existing R3-2 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
 - a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 131st Street, 103rd Avenue, 133rd Street, Liberty Avenue, 134th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 127th Street, Liberty Avenue, and 127th Street; and
 - Linden Boulevard, 114th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 118th Street, 115th Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 120th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and a line 275 feet westerly of 114th Street;
- eliminating from within an existing R4 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
 - Liberty Avenue, 77th Street, a line 100 a. feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 75th Street:
 - Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 150 b. feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 87th Street:
 - a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty c. Avenue, 111th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line

- midway between 102nd Street and 101st Street, Liberty Avenue, and 103rd Street;
- d. a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 110th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and 109th Street; and
- a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway e. Boulevard, 113th Street, Linden Boulevard, Rockaway Boulevard, and 111th Street;
- eliminating from within an existing R5 District a 6. C2-2 District bounded by:
 - 103rd Avenue, 93rd Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 94th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, Woodhaven Boulevard, Rockaway Boulevard, 94th Street, Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, and 92nd Street; and
 - a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty b. Avenue, 111th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 103rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 102nd Street;
- changing from an R3-2 District to an R3A District 7. property bounded by:
 - a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty a. Avenue, 133rd Street, a line 130 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 134th Street, a line 120 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, the centerline of the northeasterly service road of Van Wyck Expressway, 105th Avenue and its northeasterly centerline prolongation, 133rd Street, 107th Avenue, and 123rd Street; and
 - a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway b. Boulevard, a line midway between 118th Street and Lefferts Boulevard, a line 240 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, Hawtree Creek Road, 135th Avenue, 115th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of 135th Avenue, and 114th Street:
- changing from an R4 District to an R3A District 8. property bounded by 133rd Avenue, a northeasterly boundary line of the Long Island Rail Road right-ofway (Rockaway Beach Division), Pitkin Avenue, and 97th Street;
- changing from a C8-1 District to an R3A District 9. property bounded by a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 114th Street, a line 500 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and a line 100 feet westerly of 114th Street;
- changing from an R3-2 District to an R3X District 10. property bounded by a line 100 feet southerly of 135th Avenue, 115th Street, a line 200 feet southerly of 135th Avenue, a line midway between 115th Street and 116th Street, a line 180 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, 116th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, 117th Street, a line 150 feet southerly 135th Avenue, 118th Street, 135th Avenue, a line midway between 118th Street and Lefferts Boulevard, 149th Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street and its southerly prolongation, Southern Parkway, and 114th Street and its southerly centerline prolongation;
- changing from an R4 District to an R3X District property bounded by Pitkin Avenue, a northeasterly boundary line of the Long Island Rail Road right-of-way (Rockaway Beach Division), North Conduit Avenue, Albert Road, a line 200 feet westerly of 95th Street, a line 90 feet southerly of Albert Road, Cross Bay Boulevard, 149th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard and its southerly prolongation, a line 100 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, and 97th Street;
- 12. changing from an R3-2 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 127th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street;
- changing from an R4 District to an R4-1 District 13. property bounded by:
 - Liberty Avenue, a northwesterly boundary line of Bayside Cemetery and its northeasterly and southwesterly prolongations, 80th Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 79th Street, a line 260 feet northerly of Sutter Avenue, 79th Street, a line 160 feet northerly of Sutter Avenue, a line midway between 78th Street and 79th Street, Glenmore Avenue, and 79th Street:
 - a line 100 feet southwesterly of Pitkin Avenue, 81st Street, Sutter Avenue, Pitkin Avenue, 86th Street, 133rd Avenue, a line midway between 85th Street and 86th Street, a line 160 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, 85th Street, Dumont Avenue, 83rd Street, a

- northeasterly and easterly boundary line of Joseph P. Addabbo Memorial Park and its southeasterly and northerly prolongations, 133rd Avenue, 81st Street, a northerly and northeasterly boundary line of Joseph P. Addabbo Memorial Park and its easterly and northwesterly prolongations, and 80th Street;
- Sutter Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, a c. line 90 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, Silver Road, Cross Bay Boulevard, Gold Road, a line 525 feet southeasterly from Sitka Street, Desarc Road, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly street line of Redding Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Albert Road and its northwesterly prolongation, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Redding Street, Albert Road, 149th Avenue, North Conduit Avenue, 88th Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line 360 feet northwesterly
- d. of Sitka Street, Desarc Road, 133rd
 Avenue, a line perpendicular to the
 northeasterly street line of Gold Road
 distant 180 feet southeasterly (as
 measured along the street line) from the
 point of intersection of the northeasterly
 street line of Gold Road and the easterly
 street line of 89th Street, Silver Road, a
 line 130 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue,
 Gold Road, a line 175 feet northerly of
 133rd Avenue, and 88th Street;
- e. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty
 Avenue, a line midway between 109th
 Street and 110th Street, 107th Avenue,
 108th Street, a line 375 feet
 northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line
 midway between 106th Street and 107th
 Street, a line 175 feet northwesterly of
 107th Avenue, 105th Street, 107th
 Avenue, a line 200 feet southeasterly of
 107th Avenue, a line midway between
 105th Street and 106th Street, a line 100
 feet northeasterly of Rockaway
 Boulevard, and 104th Street;
- f. a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty
 Avenue, 118th Street, a line 200 feet
 southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line
 midway between Lefferts Boulevard and
 120th Street, a line 100 feet
 northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line
 midway between 122nd Street and 123rd
 Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of
 Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 100
 feet northwesterly of 109th Avenue,
 122nd Street, 107th Avenue, 121st Street,
 a line 125 feet northwesterly of 109th
 Avenue, 120th Street, 107th Avenue, and
 117th Street;
- a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway g. Boulevard, Centreville Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard. 108th Street, Linden Boulevard, 107th Street, a line 180 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, 106th Street, a line 170 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, 105th Street, a line perpendicular to the southeasterly street line of Centreville Street distant 250 feet southwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southerly street line of Sutter Avenue and the southeasterly street line of Centreville Street. Centreville Street, and 103rd Street:
- h. 109th Avenue, a line midway between 109th Street and 110th Street, a 120 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 109th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 107th Street;
- a line 350 feet northwesterly of 111th Avenue, 113th Street, a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and a line midway between 111th Street and 112th Street;
- j. Albert Road, North Conduit Avenue, a northeasterly boundary line of the Long Island Rail Road right-of-way (Rockaway Beach Division), Nassau Expressway, and a line 120 feet easterly of 95th Street and its southerly prolongation; and
- k. a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 118th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, and 111th Street:
- 14. changing from an R5 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
 - a. 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 92nd Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, and 88th Street;
 - b. 103rd Avenue, 98th Street, a line 100 feet

- southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 97th Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 96th Street and 97th Street, a line 150 northerly of Liberty Avenue, 96th Street, a line 150 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 93rd Street and 94th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of 103rd Avenue, and 93rd Street; and
- 103rd Avenue, 131st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue. 127th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 280 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 120th Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 220 feet southerly of 103rd Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 300 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 118th Street, a line 150 feet northerly and northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 111th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 102nd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 101st Street;
- 15. changing from a C4-2 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
 - a. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty
 Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts
 Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 300
 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue,
 Lefferts Boulevard, a line 400 feet
 southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line
 midway between Lefferts Boulevard and
 118th Street, a line 480 feet southeasterly
 of 103rd Avenue, and 118th Street;
 - b. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 120th street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street;
 - c. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street;
 - d. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street; and
 - e. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and 118th Street;
- 16. changing from a C8-1 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
 - a. Desarc Road, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the westerly street line of Redding Street, and a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding
 - a line 100 feet northerly of Albert Road, a line 225 feet easterly of Redding Street, Albert Road, and a line 200 feet easterly of Redding Street; and
 - c. 103rd Avenue, 88th Street, and a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue;
- 17. changing from an M1-1 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by a line 350 feet southerly of 103rd Avenue, 101st Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, and 100th Street;
- 18. changing from an M1-2 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by 103rd Avenue, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, and 98th Street:
- 19. changing from an R3-2 District to an R4A District property bounded by Linden Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 115th Avenue, a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 114th Street;
- 20. changing from an R4 District to an R4A District property bounded by:
 - a. Liberty Avenue, 78th Street, Glenmore
 Avenue, a line midway between 78th
 Street and 79th Street, a line 160 feet
 northerly of Sutter Avenue, 79th Street, a

line 260 feet northerly of Sutter Avenue, a line midway between 79th Street and 80th Street, Pitkin Avenue, 80th Street, North Conduit Avenue, and 75th Street;

b.

- a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 93rd Street, 107th Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 95th Street, a line perpendicular to the easterly street line of 95th Street distant 150 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the easterly street line of 95th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 98th Street and the southeasterly centerline prolongation, 133rd Avenue, 97th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 200 feet southerly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet westerly of 94th Place, 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, 133rd Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, Sutter Avenue, 88th Street, 133rd Avenue, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, 87th Street, a line 260 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, Pitkin Avenue, 133rd Avenue, 86th Street, Pitkin Avenue, and 84th Street;
- a line 375 feet northwesterly of 107th
 Avenue, 108th Street, 107th Avenue,
 109th Street, 109th Avenue, a line 100
 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a
 line midway between 105th Street and
 106th Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly
 of 107th Avenue, 105th Street, 107th
 Avenue, 105th Street, a line 175 feet
 northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and a line
 midway between 106th Street and 107th
 Street:
- d. a line 100 feet southeasterly and southerly of Liberty Avenue, 117th Street, 107th Avenue, 120th Street, 109th Avenue, a line midway between 118th Street and Lefferts Boulevard, Linden Boulevard, 113th Street, a line 350 feet northwesterly of 111th Avenue, a line midway between 111th Street and 112th Street, a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 110th Street, a line 120 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 109th Street and 110th Street, 109th Avenue, 112th Street, 107th Avenue, and a line midway between 109th Street and 110th Street;
- e. a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty
 Avenue, a line midway between 122nd
 Street and 123rd Street, a line 100 feet
 northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and a line
 midway between Lefferts Boulevard and
 120th Street; and
- f. a line 100 feet northwesterly of 109th
 Avenue, 123rd Street, Linden Boulevard,
 a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard
 and 120th Street, 111th Avenue, 120th
 Street, a line 425 feet southeasterly of
 109th Avenue, a line midway between
 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 100
 feet southeasterly of 109th Avenue, 121st
 Street, 109th Avenue, and 121st Street;
- 21. changing from a C4-2 District to an R4A District property bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street;
- 22. changing from a C8-1 District to an R4A District property bounded by a line 75 feet westerly of 94th Street, a line 130 feet northerly of Pitkin Avenue, and a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard;
 23. changing from an R4 District to an R4B District property bounded by:
 - a. 133rd Avenue, 87th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, Dumont Avenue, the southerly prolongation of the westerly street line of 86th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Dumont Avenue, the northeasterly boundary line of a park and its northwesterly prolongation, Dumont Avenue, 85th Street, a line 160 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and a line midway between 85th Street and 86th Street;
 - b. a line 100 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, 133rd Avenue, Pitkin Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, a line 260 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, and 87th Street;
 - c. 107th Avenue, 112th Street, 109th Avenue, and 109th Street; and

- d. 107th Avenue, 122nd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 109th Avenue, and 121st Street;
- 24. changing from an R4 District to an R5D District property bounded by:
 - a. 133rd Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of 94th Place, a line 200 feet southeasterly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 75 feet westerly of 94th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, Silver Road, a line 90 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and Cross Bay Boulevard; and
 - b. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, Pitkin Avenue, and a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly street line of Redding Street;
- 25. changing from a C8-1 District to an R5D District property bounded by Gold Road, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 75 feet westerly of 94th Street, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard and its southerly prolongation, 149th Avenue, Albert Road, a line 225 feet southeasterly of Redding Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Albert Road and its northwesterly prolongation, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly street line of Redding Street, Desarc Road, and a line 525 feet southeasterly of Sitka Street;
- 26. changing from an R5 District to an R6A District property bounded by:
 - a. a line 220 feet southeasterly of 103rd
 Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts
 Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 300
 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and
 Lefferts Boulevard; and
 - b. a line 280 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and 120th Street:
- 27. changing from a C4-2 District to an R6A District property bounded by 118th Street, a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 400 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 300 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 120th Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, and a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue;
- changing from an R3-2 District to an R6B District 28. property bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 131st Street, 103rd Avenue, Liberty Avenue, the centerline of the northeasterly service road of the Van Wyck Expressway, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 120 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 134th Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of 134th Street distant 130 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southerly street line of Liberty Avenue and the southwesterly street line of 134th Street, 133rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street;
- 29. changing from an R4 District to an R6B District property bounded by:
 - Liberty Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, Woodhaven Boulevard, a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 98th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line perpendicular to the easterly street line 95th Street distant 150 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the easterly street line of 95th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, 107th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 84th Street; and
 - b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 118th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 101st Street and 102nd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 103rd Street;

- 30. changing from an R5 District to an R6B District property bounded by:
 - a. 103rd Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 93rd Street and 94th Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, Woodhaven Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 92nd Street, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard;
 - b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 103rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 102nd Street; and
 - c. a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 98th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 97th Street and 98th Street;
- 31. changing from a C8-1 District to an R6B District property bounded by a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 92nd Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 103rd Avenue;
- 32. changing from an M1-1 District to an R6B District property bounded by:
 - a. a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 101st Street, Liberty Avenue, and 100th Street; and
 - b. Rockaway Boulevard, 99th Street, a line
 100 feet southerly of Rockaway
 Boulevard, a line perpendicular to the
 northeasterly street line of 98th Street
 distant 150 feet southeasterly (as
 measured along the street line) from the
 point of intersection of the southerly
 street line of Rockaway Boulevard and
 the northeasterly street line of 98th
 Street, and 98th Street;
- 33. establishing within an existing R3-2 District a C1-3
 District bounded by Linden Boulevard, a line
 midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th
 Street, 115th Avenue, and a line midway between
 Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street;
- 34. establishing within an existing R4 District a C1-3
 District bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of
 111th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of
 Lefferts Boulevard, 111th Avenue, a line midway
 between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street,
 Linden Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts
 Boulevard and 118th Street, 111th Avenue, and
 Lefferts Boulevard;
- 35. establishing within a proposed R4-1 District a C1-3 District bounded by:
 - a. Pitkin Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of 85th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 133rd Avenue, 85th Street, a line 195 feet northerly of 133rd Avenue, and a line 100 feet westerly of 85th Street; and
 - Sutter Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 100 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, and a line 100 feet westerly of Cross Bay Boulevard;
- 36. establishing within a proposed R4A District a C1-3 District bounded by:
 - a. Linden Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, and 94th Street; and
 - b. a line 340 feet southerly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet westerly of 97th Street, Linden Boulevard, a line 90 feet easterly of 96th Place, a line 100 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, 96th Place, a line 280 feet northerly of Pitkin Avenue, a line 80 feet easterly of 96th Street, Linden Boulevard, and a line 175 feet westerly of 97th Street;
- 37. establishing within a proposed R5D District a C1-3 District bounded by:
 - a. 133rd Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet westerly of 94th Place, a line 200 feet southerly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, Linden Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, Silver Road, a line 75 feet westerly of Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 90 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and Cross Bay Boulevard; and
 - b. Pitkin Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard and its southerly prolongation, 149th Avenue, Albert Road, a line 225 feet southeasterly of Redding Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Albert Road and its northwesterly prolongation, and a line 100 feet northwesterly of Redding Street;
- 38. establishing within an existing R3-2 District a C2-3 District bounded by Linden Boulevard, 114th

- Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 117th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 15th Avenue, 118th Street, 115th Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 120th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 240 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and a line 275 feet northerly of 114th Street;
- 39. establishing within a proposed R3A District a C2-3
 District bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of
 Liberty Avenue, a line 65 feet northeasterly of
 123rd Street, a line perpendicular to the
 northeasterly street line of 123rd Street distant 125
 feet southerly (as measured along the street line)
 from the point of intersection of the southeasterly
 street line of Liberty Avenue and the northeasterly
 street line of 123rd Street, and 123rd Street;
- 40. establishing within an existing R4 District a C2-3 District bounded by:
 - a. 109th Avenue, 107th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 108th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, Centreville Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and the southeasterly centerline prolongation of 106th Street;
 - b. a line 120 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 110th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and 109th Street; and
 - c. a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway
 Boulevard, 113th Street, Linden
 Boulevard, Rockaway Boulevard, and
 111th Street:
- 41. establishing within a proposed R4-1 District a C2-3 District bounded by:
 - a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty
 Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts
 Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 500
 feet northerly of 107th Avenue, and 118th
 Street;
 - a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty
 Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts
 Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 510
 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and
 Lefferts Boulevard; and
 - c. a line 400 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 121st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street;
- 42. establishing within a proposed R4A District a C2-3 District bounded by:
 - a. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty
 Avenue, 121st Street, a line 580 feet
 northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line
 midway between 120th Street and 121st
 Street, a line 560 feet northwesterly of
 107th Avenue, and 120th Street;
 - b. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty
 Avenue, a line midway between 122nd
 Street and 123rd Street, a line 610 feet
 northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and a line
 midway between 121st Street and 122nd
 Street; and
 - c. Liberty Avenue, 77th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 75th Street;
- 43. establishing within a proposed R5D District a C2-3
 District bounded by Linden Boulevard, a line 100
 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, Pitkin
 Avenue, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly
 street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet
 northwesterly (as measured along the street line)
 from the point of intersection of the southwesterly
 street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly
 street line of Redding Street, Desarc Road, a line
 525 feet southeasterly of Sitka Street, Gold Road,
 and Cross Bay Boulevard;
- 44. establishing within a proposed R6A District a C2-3 District bounded by a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 400 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 220 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 120th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 660 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 121st Street and 122nd Street, a line 630 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, 121st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue and 118th Street; and
- 45. establishing within a proposed R6B District a C2-3 District bounded by:

- 103rd Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, Woodhaven Boulevard, a line 150 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line 120 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 97th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 97th Street and 98th Street, a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 98th Street and its southeasterly centerline prolongation, Rockaway Boulevard, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line of 98th Street distant 150 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection from the northeasterly street line of 98th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 98th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line 95th Street distant 150 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of 95th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, 107th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 87th Street, Liberty Avenue, 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 92nd Street, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard;
- b. a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 101st Street, Liberty Avenue, and 100th Street:
- c. a line 100 feet northwesterly and northerly of Liberty Avenue, 118th Street, a line 100 feet southerly and southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 101st Street and 102nd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 102nd Street; and
- d. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 131st Street, 103rd Avenue, Liberty Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 120 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 134th Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of 134th Street distant 130 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southeasterly street line of Liberty Avenue and the southwesterly street line of 134th Street, 133rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street;

as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated September 9, 2013 and subject to the conditions of CEQR Declaration E-320.

YVETTE V. GRUEL, Calendar Officer City Planning Commission 22 Reade Street, Room 2E New York, New York 10007 Telephone (212) 720-3370

o23-n6

COMMUNITY BOARDS

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF QUEENS

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 07 - Monday, October 28, 2013 at 7:00 P.M., Union Plaza Care Center, 33-23 Union Street, Flushing, NY

BSA# 163-13-BZ Premises: 133-10 39th Avenue

Special permit supplication pursuant to Section 73-44, to reduce required parking, if approved it will permit in a C4-2 zoning district, the alteration of existing two-story and cellar Use Group 6 professional office building which was lawfully constructed with on parking spaces.

o22-28

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 13 - Wednesday, October 30, 2013 at 7:00 P.M., Coney Island Hospital, 2nd Floor Auditorium, 2601 Ocean Parkway, Brooklyn, NY

BSA# 268-12-BZ

Special permit application for the building at 2849 Cropsey Avenue, to permit increase in lot coverage from 55.28% (existing non-complying) to 58.53%.

-04 90

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT PURSUANT to the provisions of 3020 of the New York City Charter and Chapter 3 of Title 24 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York (Sections 25-303 and 25-313) that on Tuesday, October 29, 2013 at 9:30 A.M., at the Landmarks Preservation Commission will conduct a public hearing in the Public Meeting Room of the Landmarks Preservation Commission, located at The Municipal Building, 1 Centre Street, 9th Floor North, City of New York with respect to the following proposed Landmarks, Landmark Sites and Historic District. Any person requiring reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the hearing should call or write the Landmarks Preservation Commission, [Municipal Building, 1 Centre Street, 9th Floor North, New York, NY 10007, (212) 669-7700] no later than five (5) business days before the hearing. There will also be a public meeting on that day.

Public Hearing Item No. 1

Time: 9:30 – 10:30 A.M. LP-2558

PARK SLOPE HISTORIC DISTRICT EXTENSION II, Borough of Brooklyn

Boundary Description

Area I of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southeast corner of 6th Avenue and St. Mark's Avenue, extending easterly along the southern curbline of St. Mark's Avenue and southeasterly along the southwestern curbline of Flatbush Avenue, southwesterly and southerly along the northeastern and eastern property lines of 76 St. Mark's Avenue (aka 78 and 80 St. Mark's Avenue and 244 Flatbush Avenue), southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 87 6th Avenue, easterly along a portion of the northern property line of 87 6th Avenue, southerly along the eastern property lines of 87 through 95 6th Avenue to the southern curbline of Prospect Place, easterly along said curbline, southerly along the eastern property line of 92 Prospect Place, westerly along the southern property lines of 92 through 82 Prospect Place and a portion of the southern property line of 105 6th Avenue, southerly along eastern property line of 95 Park Place (Block 939, Lot 71) to the southern curbline of Park Place, westerly along said curbline, southerly along the eastern property line of 117 6th Avenue (aka 80 Park Place), easterly along a portion of the northern property line of 119 6th Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 119 6th Avenue, easterly along a portion of the northern property line of 121 6th Avenue, southerly along the western property line of 92 Park Place, easterly along the southern property lines of 92 through 120 Park Place, southerly along the eastern property line of 109 Sterling Place to the northern curbline of Sterling Place, westerly along said curbline, southerly across Sterling Place and along the eastern property line of 94-96 Sterling Place, westerly along the southern property lines of 94-96 through 80 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 80 Sterling Place to the southern curbline of Sterling Place, westerly along said curbline, crossing 6th Avenue, and continuing along said curbline, southerly along the western property line of 128 6th Avenue (aka 66 and 70 Sterling Place), westerly along the northern property line of 130 6th Avenue, southerly along the western property lines of 130 through 136 6th Avenue, westerly along the southern property lines of 64 through 12 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 12 Sterling Place to the southern curbline of Sterling Place, easterly along said curbline, northerly across Sterling Place and along the western property line of 25 Sterling Place, easterly along the northern property lines of 25 through 31 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 34 Park Place, to the southern curbline of Park Place, easterly along said curbline, northerly across park Place and along the western property lines of 71 Park Place (aka 114 6th Avenue and 71-83 Park Place) through 108 6th Avenue, westerly along the southern property lines of 106 6th Avenue and 64 through 10 Prospect Place, northerly along the western property line of 10 Prospect Place and across Prospect Place, continuing along the western property lines of 9 Prospect Place and 10 St. Mark's Avenue, across St. Mark's Avenue to its northern curbline, westerly along said curbline, northerly along the western property line of 7 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property lines of 7 through 49 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 49 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property lines of 53 and 55 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 55 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property line of 57 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 57 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property line of 59 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 59 St. Mark's Avenue to the southern curbline of St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along said curbline, across 6th Avenue to the eastern curbline of 6th Avenue, and northerly along said curbline to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

Area II of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southwest corner of Sterling Place and Flatbush Avenue, extending southerly along the eastern property line of 184 Sterling Place, westerly along the southern property line of 184 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 184 Sterling Place, westerly along the southern property lines of 184 through 148 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 148 Sterling Place, across Sterling Place to its northern curbline, westerly along said curbline, northerly along the western property line of 147 Sterling Place, easterly along the northern property lines of 147, 149 and 151 Sterling Place, southerly along the eastern property line of 151 Sterling

Place and across Sterling Place to its southern curbline, easterly along said curbline to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

Area III of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southwest corner of Plaza Street West and St. John's Place, extending southerly along the western curbline of Plaza Street West, westerly along the southern property line of 1-3 Plaza Street West (aka 1-5 8th avenue and 254-266 St. John's Place), across 8th Avenue to the western curbline of 8th Avenue, northerly along said curbline to the southwest corner of 8th Avenue and St. John's Place, easterly across 8th Avenue and along the southern curbline of St. John's Place to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

Area IV of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the northwest corner of 6th Avenue and Union Street, extending westerly along the northern curbline of Union Street, northerly along the western property lines of 204 6th Avenue (aka 787-793 Union Street) through 194 6th Avenue, westerly along the southern property lines of 70 through 12 Berkeley Place, northerly along the western property line of 12 Berkeley Place to the southern curbline of Berkeley Place, easterly along said curbline, southerly along the eastern property line of 70 Berkeley Place, easterly along the northern property line of 194 Berkeley Place and across 6th Avenue to its eastern curbline, southerly along said curbline, easterly along the northern property line of 201 6th Avenue, southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 201 6th Avenue, westerly along a portion of the southern property line of 201 6th Avenue, southerly along the eastern property lines of 201 through 207 6th Avenue to the northern curbline of Union Street, westerly along said curbline and across 6th Avenue to the point of the beginning, Borough of

Area V of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southwest corner of Plaza Street West and Lincoln Place, extending southeasterly along the curving western curbline of Plaza Street West, across Berkeley Place, continuing along said curbline to the northwest corner of Plaza Street West and Union Street, westerly along the northern curbline of Union Street to a point in said curbline formed by its intersection with a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 902 Union Street, southerly along said line to the southern curbline of Union Street, westerly along said curbline to a point formed by its intersection with a line extending southerly from the western property line of 941 Union Street, northerly across Union Street and along the western property line of 941 Union Street, westerly along the southern property line of 284 Berkeley Place, northerly along the western property line of 284 Berkeley Place and across Berkeley Place to its northern curbline, westerly along said curbline, northerly along the western property line of 21 Plaza Street West (aka 21-37 Plaza Street West, 269-279 Berkeley Place, and 266 Lincoln Place) to the southern curbline of Lincoln Place, and easterly along said curbline to the point of the beginning, Borough of

[Community District No. 06]

Public Hearing Item No. 2 Time: 10:30 – 10:50 A.M.

LP-2552

BRONX GENERAL POST OFFICE LOBBY, FIRST FLOOR INTERIOR, Consisting of the lobby and the fixtures and components of this space, including but not limited to, the wall surfaces, murals, wainscoting, ceiling surfaces, floor surfaces, columns, plaque, metal gate and globe lighting fixtures, 560 Grand Concourse (aka 554-582 Grand Concourse), Bronx.

Landmark Site: Borough of the Bronx Tax Map Block 2443, Lot 400 [Community District 04]

Public Hearing Item No. 4 Time: 10:50 - 11:00 A.M.

Time: 10:50 - 11:00 LP-2519

M. H. RENKEN DAIRY COMPANY OFFICE BUILDING AND ENGINE ROOM BUILDING, 582-584 Myrtle Avenue and 580 Myrtle Avenue, Brooklyn

Landmark Site: Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 1909/Lot 32 in its entirety and Lot 31 in part, consisting of that portion of Lot 31 lying north of a line beginning at a point on the eastern boundary line of Lot 31 that is 61.21 feet south of the northern boundary line of Lot 31, thence running westerly, parallel with the northern boundary line of Lot 31, to a point on the western boundary line of Lot 31 [Community District No. 02].

Public Hearing Item No. 4 Time: 11:00 – 11:10 A.M.

<u>DOERING-BOHACK HOUSE</u>, 1090 Greene Avenue (aka 1 Goodwin Place), Brooklyn.

 ${\it Landmark~Site:}~ Borough~ of~ Brooklyn~ Tax~ Map~ Block~ 3294, \\ Lot~ 1 \\ [Community~ District~ 04]$

Public Hearing Item No. 5 Time: 11:10 – 11:20 A.M. LP-2541

RIDGEWOOD LODGE NO. 710. FREE AND ACCEPTED MASONS, 1054 Bushwick Avenue (aka 1122 Gates Avenue), Brooklyn.

 ${\it Landmark~Site:}~ Borough~ of~ Brooklyn~ Tax~ Map~ Block~ 3339, \\ Lot~ 19$

[Community District 04]

Public Hearing Item No. 6 Time: 11:20 – 11:30 A.M.

FORMER FIRST GERMAN BAPTIST CHURCH (LATER UKRANIAN AUTOCEPHALIC ORTHODOX CHURCH OF ST. VOLODYMYR/LATER CONGREGATION TIFERETH ISRAEL TOWN AND VILLAGE SYNAGOGUE), 334 East 14th Street, Manhattan

 $Landmark\ Site:$ Borough of Manhattan Tax Map Block 455, Lot24

[Community District No. 03]

o15-28

PARKS AND RECREATION

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE OF A JOINT PUBLIC HEARING of the Franchise and Concession Review Committee and the New York City Department of Parks and Recreation to be held on Tuesday, November 12, 2013 at 22 Reade Street, Borough of Manhattan, commencing at 2:30 P.M. relative to:

INTENT TO AWARD as a concession a Sole Source License Agreement to Bike the Greenway LLC ("Bike and Roll") whose address is 140 West 30th Street, Suite 5E, New York, 10001, the installation, operation and maintenance of a bike rental station at Battery Park, approximately across from 17 State Street, Manhattan. The Agreement will commence upon Notice to Proceed. Compensation to the City will be as follows: For each Operating Year, except Operating Year 1, compensation will be the greater of a \$17,000 minimum annual fee or 12.5% of Gross Receipts between \$100,000 and \$149,999, 13.50% of Gross Receipts between \$150,000 and \$199,999 and 14.50% of Gross Receipts equal to or above \$200,000. In Operating Year 1, which will only be a partial year, compensation will be the greater of \$7,083.00 or 12.5% of Gross Receipts between \$100,000 and \$149,999, 13.50% of Gross Receipts between \$150,000 and \$199,999 and 14.50% of Gross Receipts equal to or above \$200,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to guided tours sold at Battery Park that originate at locations other than Battery Park, such sales shall not be included in Gross Receipts, and compensation to the City for these sales will instead be a separate fee of 2% of Bike and Roll's total receipts from such

LOCATION: A draft copy of the license agreement may be reviewed or obtained at no cost, commencing October 31, 2013, through November 12, 2013, between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., excluding weekends and holidays at the NYC Department of Parks and Recreation, located at 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 313, New York, NY 10065.

Individuals requesting Sign Language Interpreters should contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services, Public Hearings Unit, 253 Broadway, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10007, (212) 788-7490, no later than SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING.

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115

☞ o28

TRANSPORTATION

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to law, that the following proposed revocable consents, have been scheduled for a public hearing by the New York City Department of Transportation. The hearing will be held at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, Room 945 commencing at 2:00 P.M. On Wednesday, November 6, 2013. Interested parties can obtain copies of proposed agreements or request sign-language interpreters (with at least seven days prior notice) at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor SW, New York, NY 10041, or by calling (212) 839-6550.

#1 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing 50 Restaurant Group LLC to continue to maintain and use a sidewalk hatch under the east sidewalk of Clinton Street, between Stanton and Rivington Streets, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$1,165 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$1,198 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$1,231 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$1,264 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$1,297 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$1,330 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$1,363 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$1,396 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$1,429 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023 - \$1,462

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

#2 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing 186 Manhattan Associates, LLC to continue to maintain and use a stoop and a fenced-in area on the south sidewalk of East 93rd Street, west of Third Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$598 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$613

For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$628 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$643 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$658 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$673 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$688 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$703 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$718 For the period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 - \$733

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

#3 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing 484 8th Operating Inc. to continue to maintain and use a ramp on the east sidewalk of Eighth Avenue, north of 34th Street, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 - \$25/annum. the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,500 and the insurance shall be the amount of One Million Dollars (1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (2,000,000) aggregate.

#4 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Ashley Realty Corp. to continue to maintain planted areas and planters on the west sidewalk of Madison Avenue, north of East 71st Street, and one planted area on the north sidewalk of East 71st Street, west of Madison Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 - \$278/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

#5 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing The Brooklyn Union Gas Company d/b/a/ National Grid USA to construct, maintain and use gas main (Brooklyn-Queens Interconnect - Phase II) under and along Brooklyn Marine Park, parallel to Flatbush Avenue, in the Borough of Brooklyn. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following general decided.

From the date of Approval to June 30, 2014 - \$33,746/annum.

For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$34,708 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$35,670 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$36,632 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$37,594 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$38,556 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$39,581 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$40,480 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$41,442 For the period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 - \$42,404 For the period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 - \$43,366

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$103,500 and the insurance shall be in the amount of Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence, and Thirty Five Million Dollars (\$35,000,000) aggregate.

#6 In the matter of a proposed modification of revocable consent authorizing Museum of Arts and Design to construct, maintain and use four (4) additional benches on the west sidewalk of Broadway at 2 Columbus Circle, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2019 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following

From the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2019 - \$1,350/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

#7 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Mary White to construct, maintain and use a fenced-in area and a snowmelt system on the north sidewalk of East 78th Street, between Park Avenue and Lexington Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

From the Approval Date to June 30, 2024 - 25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

#8 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Strong and Harrison, LLC to construct, maintain and use fenced-in planted areas on the south sidewalk of Kane Street, west of Strong Place, in the Borough of Brooklyn. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

From the Approval Date to June 30, 2024 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

#9 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Sugar Shack LLC to construct, maintain and use a snowmelt system on the south sidewalk of East 75th Street, between Fifth Avenue and Madison Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

From the Approval Date to June 30, 2024 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

o16-n6

COMMUTER VAN SERVICE AUTHORITY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Department of Transportation is conducting a public hearing on the expansion of vehicles of a Van Authority in the Borough of Queens. The van company requesting expansion is Citivan Lines Corp. The address is 117-28 165th Street, Jamaica, NY 11434. The applicant currently utilizes 14 vans daily to provide service 12 hours a day and is requesting an additional 10 vans.

There will be a public hearing held on Friday, November 15, 2013 at the Queens Borough Hall, 120-55 Queens Blvd., Room 213, Part 2, Kew Gardens, New York 11424 from 2:00 P.M. - 4:00 P.M. In addition, written comments in support or in opposition to this application may be sent to Ms. Dorothy Szorc at the New York City Department of Transportation, Division of Traffic and Planning, 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, NY 10041, no later than November 15, 2013. Any written comments received after this date may not be considered. Those opposing the application must clearly specify why the proposed service will not meet present and/or future public convenience and necessity.

● o28-n1

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Department of Transportation is conducting a public hearing on the six year renewal and an expansion of vans of a New York City Commuter Van Authority in the Borough of Queens. The van company requesting the renewal is JAH LOVE Transportation. The address is 582 East 88th Street, 2nd Floor, Brooklyn, NY 11236. The applicant currently utilizes 4 vans daily to provide service 24 hours a day and is requesting 6 additional vans.

There will be a public hearing held on Friday, November 15, 2013 at the Queens Borough Hall, 120-55 Queens Blvd., in Large Conference Room 213, Part 2, Kew Gardens, New York 11424 from 2:00 P.M. - 4:00 P.M. so that you may have an opportunity to voice your position on this application. In addition, written comments in support or in opposition to this application may be sent to Ms. Dorothy Szorc at the New York City Department of Transportation, Division of Planning and Sustainability, 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, NY 10041, no later than November 15, 2013. Any written comments received after this date may not be considered. Those opposing the application must clearly specify why the proposed service will not meet present and/or future public convenience and necessity.

● o28-n1

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Department of Transportation is conducting a public hearing on the expansion of vehicles of a Van Authority in the Borough of Brooklyn. The van company requesting expansion is Blackstreet Van Lines, Inc. The address is 310 Lenox Road, Apt. 4H, Brooklyn, NY 11226. The applicant currently utilizes 16 vans daily to provide service 24 hours a day and is requesting an additional 5 vans.

There will be a public hearing held on Wednesday, November 13, 2013 at Brooklyn Borough Hall, Community Room, 209 Joralemon Street, Brooklyn, New York 11201 from 2:00 P.M. - 4:00 P.M. In addition, written comments in support or in opposition to this application may be sent to Ms. Dorothy Szorc at the New York City Department of Transportation, Division of Traffic and Planning, 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, NY 10041, no later than November 13, 2013. Any written comments received after this date may not be considered. Those opposing the application must clearly specify why the proposed service will not meet present and/or future public convenience and necessity.

● o28-n

PROPERTY DISPOSITION

CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

ASSET MANAGEMENT

■ PUBLIC LEASE AUCTION

PROPOSED LEASES OF CERTAIN NEW YORK CITY REAL PROPERTY SEALED BID PUBLIC LEASE AUCTION

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT The Department of Citywide Administrative Services; Asset

Management will conduct a Sealed Bid Public Lease Auction pertaining to Long-Term Leases, Short-Term Leases and Licenses on October 30, 2013 at Municipal Building, 1 Centre Street, 20th Floor South Conference Room A, New York, NY 10007. Sealed bids will be accepted from 10:00 A.M. to 11:00 A.M. and opened at 11:00 A.M.

The offerings, including Terms and Conditions and Special Terms and Conditions, are set forth in a brochure. For further information, including a brochure and a bid packet, please visit the DCAS website at nyc.gov/dcas after October 4, 2013 or call 212-386-0335.

In accordance with Section 384 of the New York City Charter, the properties listed below will be offered at Sealed Bid Public Lease Auction. A Public Hearing was held on September 25, 2013 at 22 Reade Street, in the Borough of Manhattan in the matter of the two properties listed below:

Manhattan, Block 1633, Lot 13

127 East 105th Street Property Address: Property Type: 3 story building

Minimum Annual Bid: \$85,824 Inspection Dates:

October 7, 2013 1:00 P.M. to 2:00 p.m. October 15, 2013 1:00 P.M. to

Brooklyn, Block 6036, Part of Lot 1

Property Address: 8501 Fifth Avenue

Property Type: Ground floor retail store and basement space

Minimum Annual Bid: \$90,240 Inspection Dates:

October 8, 2013 11:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M.

October 15, 2013 12:00 P.M. to 1:00 P.M.

In accordance with New York Administrative Code Section 4-203, the properties listed below also will be offered at the Sealed Bid Public Lease Auction:

Bronx, Block 3542, Lot 20

Property Address:

East side of Zerega Avenue, approximately 250 feet south of

Randall Avenue Unimproved Land

Property Type: Minimum Monthly Bid: Inspection Dates:

\$11,200 October 9, 2013 11:00 A.M. to

12:00 P.M.

October 16, 2013 12:00 P.M. to

1:00 P.M.

Queens, Block 13420, Lots: 8 and 999

Property Location:

West side of 183rd Street, 200 feet south of the southwest corner of 150th Drive and 183rd

Street Unimproved Land

Property Type; Minimum Monthly Bid:

Inspection Dates:

\$4,820 October 10, 2013 11:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M.

October 16, 2013 12:00 P.M. to

1:00 P.M.

s27-o30

OFFICE OF CITYWIDE PURCHASING

NOTICE

The Department of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of Citywide Purchasing is currently selling surplus assets on the internet. Visit

http://www.publicsurplus.com/sms/nycdcas.ny/browse/home. To begin bidding, simply click on 'Register' on the home page. There are no fees to register. Offerings may include but are not limited to: office supplies/equipment, furniture, building supplies, machine tools, HVAC/plumbing/electrical equipment, lab equipment, marine equipment, and more. Public access to computer workstations and assistance with placing bids is available at the following locations:

- DCAS Central Storehouse, 66-26 Metropolitan Avenue,
- Middle Village, NY 11379
- DCAS, Office of Citywide Purchasing, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007.

jy24-d1

POLICE

OWNERS ARE WANTED BY THE PROPERTY CLERK DIVISION OF THE NEW YORK CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT.

The following listed property is in the custody, of the Property Clerk Division without claimants. Recovered, lost, abandoned property, property obtained from prisoners, emotionally disturbed, intoxicated and deceased persons; and property obtained from persons incapable of caring for themselves.

Motor vehicles, boats, bicycles, business machines, cameras, calculating machines, electrical and optical property, furniture, furs, handbags, hardware, jewelry, photographic equipment, radios, robes, sound systems, surgical and musical instruments, tools, wearing apparel, communications equipment, computers, and other miscellaneous articles.

INQUIRIES

Inquiries relating to such property should be made in the Borough concerned, at the following office of the Property Clerk.

FOR MOTOR VEHICLES

(All Boroughs):

- Springfield Gardens Auto Pound, 174-20 North Boundary Road, Queens, NY 11430, (718) 553-9555
- Erie Basin Auto Pound, 700 Columbia Street, Brooklyn, NY 11231, (718) 246-2030

FOR ALL OTHER PROPERTY

- Manhattan 1 Police Plaza, New York, NY 10038, (646) 610-5906.
- Brooklyn 84th Precinct, 301 Gold Street,
- Brooklyn, NY 11201, (718) 875-6675 Bronx Property Clerk - 215 East 161 Street,
- Bronx, NY 10451, (718) 590-2806. Queens Property Clerk - 47-07 Pearson Place,
- Long Island City, NY 11101, (718) 433-2678. Staten Island Property Clerk - 1 Edgewater Plaza, Staten Island, NY 10301, (718) 876-8484.

PROCUREMENT

"Compete To Win" More Contracts! Thanks to a new City initiative - "Compete to Win" - the NYC Department of Small Business Services offers a new set of FREE services to help create more opportunities for minority and women-owned businesses to compete, connect and grow their business with the City. With NYC Construction Loan, Technical Assistance, NYC Construction Mentorship, Bond Readiness, and NYC Teaming services, the City will be able to help even more small businesses than before.

● Win More Contracts at nyc.gov/competetowin

"The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed to the City's prestige as a global destination. The contracting opportunities for construction/construction services and construction-related services that appear in the individual agency listings below reflect that commitment to excellence."

HHS ACCELERATOR

To respond to human services Requests for Proposals (RFPs) released Fall 2013 and later, vendors must first complete and $\,$ submit an electronic prequalification application using the City's Health and Human Services (HĤŜ) Accelerator System. The HHS Accelerator System is a web-based system maintained by the City of New York for use by its human services Agencies to manage procurement. To establish this, the City of New York is using the innovative procurement method, as permitted and in accordance with Section 3-12 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules of the City of New York ("PPB Rules"). The new process will remove redundancy by capturing information about boards, filings, policies, and general service experience centrally. As a result, specific proposals for funding will be more focused on program design, scope, and budget.

Important information about the new method

- Prequalification applications are required every three
- Documents related to annual corporate filings must be
- submitted on an annual basis to remain eligible to compete Prequalification applications will be reviewed to validate compliance with corporate filings, organizational capacity, and relevant service experience
- Approved organizations will be eligible to compete and would submit electronic proposals through the system.

RFPs to be managed by HHS Accelerator are listed on the NYC Procurement Roadmap located at http://www.nyc.gov/html/hhsaccelerator/html/roadmap/roadmap.shtml. All current and prospective vendors should frequently review information listed on roadmap to take full advantage of upcoming opportunities for funding.

Participating NYC Agencies

HHS Accelerator, led by the Deputy Mayor for Health and Human Services, is governed by an Executive Steering Committee of Agency Heads who represent the following NYC Client and Community- based Services Agencies:

Administration for Children's Services (ACS) $Department \ for \ the \ Aging \ (DFTA)$ Department of Corrections (DOC) Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH) tment of Homeless Department of Probation (DOP) Department of Small Business Services (SBS) Department of Youth and Community Development (DYCD) Housing and Preservation Department (HPD) Human Resources Administration (HRA) Office of the Criminal Justice Coordinator (CJC) To sign up for training on the new system, and for additional information about HHS Accelerator, including background

materials, user guides and video tutorials, please visit www.nyc.gov/hhsaccelerator.

CITY UNIVERSITY

caron.christian@cuny.edu

SOLICITATIONS

Goods & Services

KONICA MINOLTA COPIER MAINTENANCE Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# UCO 546 – DUE 11-13-13 AT 11:00 A.M. – Provide maintenance services for Konica Minolta brand type multifunctional devices and copiers for its University-wide fleet.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. City University, 230 W. 41st Street, 5th Floor, New York, NY 10036. Steve Delmar / Caron Christian (646) 746-4262;

Fax: (212) 397-5685; Stephen.Delmar@cuny.edu;

CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

OFFICE OF CITYWIDE PURCHASING

SOLICITATIONS

jvacirca@dcas.nyc.gov

Goods

TRUCK, FOUR WHEEL DRIVE TACTICAL SUPPORT **UNIT - FDNY** – Other – PIN# 8571400038 – DUE 11-20-13 AT 10:30 A.M. - A copy of the bid can be downloaded from the City Record Online site at http://a856-internet.nyc.gov/ nycvendoronline/home.asp. Enrollment is free. Vendors may also request the bid by contacting Vendor Relations via email at dcasdmssbids@dcas.nyc.gov, by telephone at (212) 669-8610 or by fax at (212) 669-7603.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Department of Citywide Administrative Services, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007. Joseph Vacirca (212) 669-8616; Fax: (212) 669-7581;

City Certified Minority and Women - Owned Business Enterprises (M/WBEs) are encouraged to respond to all DCAS solicitations for competitive Bids/Proposals.

☞ o28

Services (Other Than Human Services)

PUBLIC SURPLUS ONLINE AUCTION - Other -PIN# 0000000000 - DUE 12-31-14.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Citywide Administrative Services, 66-26 Metropolitan Avenue, Queens Village, NY 11379. Donald Lepore (718) 417-2152; Fax: (212) 313-3135;

s6-f25

AWARDS

dlepore@dcas.nyc.gov

Goods

EQUIPMENT, RENTAL OF VARIOUS, D.O.T. -Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 8571300252

AMT: \$204,000.00 - TO: Hoffman Equipment Co., 300 South Randolphville Road, Piscataway, NJ 08855.

• GRP: ELGIN SWEEPER – Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 8571300426 – AMT: \$136,000.00 – TO: Empire

- Equipment Sales of L.I. Inc. dba L.I. Sanitation Equip. Co., 1670 New Highway, Farmingdale, NY 11735. ullet FROZEN AND REFRIGERATED FOOD ITEMS -
- ACS/DYFJ Competitive Sealed Bids PIN# 8571300492 -AMT: \$40,400.40 - TO: Tony's Fish and Seafood Corp., A-1 Hunts Point, Co-op Market, Bx., N.Y. 10474. • FROZEN AND REFRIGERATED FOOD ITEMS -
- ACS/DYFJ Competitive Sealed Bids PIN# 8571300492 -AMT: \$13,469.80 - TO: Sungold Corp., 1523 46th Street, Brooklyn, NY 11219.
- FRÖZEN AND REFRIGERATED FOOD ITEMS -ACS/DYFJ - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN# 8571300492 -AMT: \$19,789.10 - TO: Universal Coffee Corp., 123 47th Street, P.O. Box 320187, Brooklyn, NY 11232.

NYS TELECOMM. SOLUTIONS FOR APPLICATION SYS. SRVCS. SUPPORT MAINTENANCE - DOHMH Intergovernmental Purchase - PIN# 8571400101 AMT: \$629,964.24 - TO: Nexus Consortium, Inc., 1933 Highway 35, Suite #356, Wall, NJ 07719. OGS Contract #PT65091.

Suppliers wishing to be considered for a contract with the Office of General Services of New York State are advised to contact the Procurement Services Group, Corning Tower, Room 3711, Empire State Plaza, Albany, NY 12242 or by phone: 518-474-6717.

■ VENDOR LISTS

Goods

EQUIPMENT FOR DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION – In accordance with PPB Rules, Section 2.05(c)(3), an acceptable brands list will be established for the following equipment for the Department of Sanitation:

- A. Collection Truck Bodies
- B. Collection Truck Cab Chassis
- C. Major Component Parts (Engine, Transmission, etc.)

Applications for consideration of equipment products for inclusion on the acceptable brands list are available from: Mr. Edward Andersen, Procurement Analyst, Department of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of Citywide Procurement, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007. (212) 669-8509.

j2-d31

COMPTROLLER

ASSET MANAGEMENT SOLICITATIONS

Goods & Services

CLASS ACTION CLAIMS FILING AND HISTORICAL **RESEARCH SERVICES** – Sole Source – Available only for a single source - PIN# 015-138-154-01 ZC – DUE 10-31-13 AT 12:00 P.M. – Due to its prior status as Master Custodian to the NYC Retirement Systems, The Bank of New York Mellon is the "book of record" for the transaction data necessary to render the class actions claims filing and historical search services required by the Office of the Comptroller. The term of the contract will commence on November 1, 2013 and will end October 31, 2019. The amount of the contract is estimated to be \$777,000 which will be paid with City Funds.

The proposed contractor was selected from a sole source in accordance with Section 3-05 of the PPB Rules.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Comptroller's Office, Bureau of Asset Management, 1 Centre Street, Room 650, New York, NY 10007. Evelyn Dresler (212) 669-8235; bamcontracts@comptroller.nyc.gov

023-30

CONSUMER AFFAIRS

■ SOLICITATIONS

Human/Client Services

GPR CARD REQUEST FOR EXPRESSIONS OF INTEREST – Other – PIN# 2013XX – DUE 11-18-13 AT 5:00 P.M. – The NYC Department of Consumer Affairs, Office of Financial Empowerment, is releasing a request for expressions of interest to vendors who may be able to provide a general purpose reloadable (GPR) prepaid card which can be distributed year-round. The connections established with GPR prepaid card providers through this initiative will enable community-based organizations, employers, and other entities to link their clients, participants, or employees to safe, affordable GPR prepaid card products.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Consumer Affairs, 42 Broadway, 8th Floor, New York, NY 10004. Mage Diop (212) 436-0206; Fax: (212) 500-5959; mdiop@dca.nyc.gov

☞ o28-n1

DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION

SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

CONSTRUCTION OF QUEENS
WEST/HUNTERSPOINT LIBRARY – Request for
Qualifications – PIN# QUEENS WEST – DUE 11-15-13 AT

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Design and Construction, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, 1st Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Lorraine Holley (718) 391-2601; Fax: (718) 391-2615; holleyl1@ddc.nyc.gov

024-30

AWARDS

Construction / Construction Services

HWARCKR01, REQUIREMENTS CONTRACT FOR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS, BROOKLYN AND STATEN ISLAND – Competitive Sealed Proposals – Judgment required in evaluating proposals -PIN# 8502013HW0046P – AMT: \$5,000,000.00 – TO: Thomas Balsley Associates, 31 West 27th Street, New York, NY

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

WASTEWATER TREATMENT

SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

SERVICE AND REPAIR OF TRIDENT AND RODNEY SERVICE AND REPAIR OF TRIDENT AND RODNEY HUNT ELECTRO-HYDRAULIC ACTUATORS AT VARIOUS DEP FACILITIES, CITYWIDE – Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 826131350ACT – DUE 11-20-13 AT 11:30 A.M. – Project Number: 1350-ACT. Document Fee: \$80.00, Project Manager, Paul Litwack, (718) 595-6279. There will be a pre-bid conference on 11/6/13, 10:00 A.M. at 9605 Horace Harding Expressway, 2nd Floor Conference Room #1, Flushing, NY 11373.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Environmental Protection, 59-17 Junction Blvd., 17th Floor, Flushing, NY 11373. F. Heras (718) 595-3265; Fax: (718) 595-3208; fheras@dep.nyc.gov**€** 028

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SERVICES AGENCY

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Services (Other Than Human Services)

TERM LICENSE AND SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE -Sole Source – Available only from a single source -PIN# 127FY1400078 – DUE 11-06-13 AT 12:00 P.M. – Pursuant to Section 3-05 of the Procurement Policy Board (PPB) Rules for Sole Source procurements, the Financial Information Services Agency (FISA) intends to enter into sole source negotiations with Syncsort, Inc. for maintenance of z/OS mainframe server software. This specific z/OS mainframe server software is Syncsort's proprietary product. Syncsort's software performs high speed sorts while joining and aggregating large volumes of transactional data. As a result, FISA continues to have a need for maintenance of this software.

Vendors who believe that they are able to provide maintenance for this specific mainframe server software should express their interest via email to Contract Analyst, Sebastian Asaro at SAsaro@fisa.nyc.go

● MAINTENANCE AND USAGE FOR ONE (1) VARIOSTREAM PRINTER – Sole Source – PIN# 127FY1400077 – DUE 11-06-13 AT 12:00 P.M. - Pursuant to

Section 3-05 of the Procurement Policy Board (PPB) Rules for Sole Source procurements, the Financial Information Services Agency (FISA) intends to enter into sole source negotiations with Canon Solutions America, Inc. (Canon), for maintenance and usage for one (1) Canon VarioStream printer. The VarioStream printer is Canon's proprietary product. FISA has an intensive printing operation and this printer will continue to aid the agency in fulfilling its objective. As a result, FISA continues to have a need for maintenance of this software.

Vendors who believe that they are able to provide maintenance and usage for the VarioStream printer should express their interest via email to Contract Analyst, Sebastian Asaro at SAsaro@fisa.nyc.gov

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.
Financial Information Services Agency, 450 W. 33rd Street,

4th Floor, New York, NY 10001.

Sebastian Asaro (212) 857-1403; sasaro@fisa.nyc.gov

FMS ENHANCEMENTS - Sole Source - Available only from a single source - PIN# 127FY1400076 – DUE 11-06-13 AT 11:00 A.M. – Pursuant to Section 3-05 of the Procurement Policy Board (PPB) Rules for Sole Source procurements, the Financial Information Services Agency (FISA) intends to enter into sole source negotiations with CGI Technologies and Solutions, Inc. (CGI), for the upgrade of the City's budget system, implementating of additional Advantage 3.0 functionality, and enhancing functionality included as part of the suite of FMS/3 software. The FMS/3 software suite is based on the functionality and framework of CGI's proprietary Advantage 3.0 platform. The City's current budget system is also based on an older CGI proprietary framework that is integrated with the Advantage 3.0 platform. The budget system upgrade will move the City to an integrated budget and FMS/3 Advantage 3.0 platform. The budget system upgrade and FMS/3 Advantage 3.0 platform is proprietary to the vendor and; therefore, cannot be upgraded or maintained by any other vendor. Vendors who believe that they are able to provide an Advantage 3.0 platform budget system upgrade, as well as provide services for implementing and enhance Advantage 3.0 functionality should express their interest via email to Contract Analyst, Nydia Colimon, ncolimon@fisa.nyc.gov

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.
Financial Information Services Agency, 450 West 33rd Street,

4th Floor, New York, NY 10001. Nydia Colimon (212) 857-1114; Fax: (212) 857-1004; ncolimon@fisa.nvc.gov

o25-31

FIRE

■ SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

MAINTAIN AND REPAIR AIR COMPRESSORS AND ANCILLARY EQUIPMENT LOCATED AT THE MASK SERVICE UNIT'S FACILITIES – Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 057140000932 – DUE 11-26-13 AT 4:00 P.M. – E-PIN#: 05714B0003.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Fire Department, 9 MetroTech Center, 5th Floor, Brooklyn, NY 11201. Kristina LeGrand (718) 999-1231; Fax: (718) 999-0177; legrankm@fdny.nyc.gov

HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

The New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation The New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation is regularly soliciting bids for supplies and equipment at its Central Purchasing Offices, 346 Broadway, New York City, Room 516, for its Hospitals and Diagnostic and Treatment Centers. All interested parties are welcome to review the bids that are posted in Room 516 weekdays between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. For information regarding bids and the bidding process, please call (212) 442-4018.

j1-d31

■ SOLICITATIONS

Goods & Services

OPERATE RESTAURANT WITHIN BELLEVUE HOSPITAL – Request for Proposals – PIN# RESTAURANT WITHIN – DUE 12-13-13 AT 5:00 P.M. – This Request for Proposals (RFP) is being issued to assist the New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation (HHC or the Corporation), in selecting a Proposer who will provide a high-quality, costeffective Restaurant operation for Bellevue Hospital Center patients, visitors, and staff.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Health and Hospitals Corporation, 125 Worth Street, Room 502, New York, NY 10013. David Larish (212) 442-3869; Fax: (212) 788-5483;

Barishd@nychhc.org
Bellevue Hospital Center, Office of Network Contracts,
462 First Avenue, MN33, New York, New York 10016.

o25-n18

HOUSING AUTHORITY

■ SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

REPLACEMENT OF ROOF WATER TANK AT PATTERSON HOUSES - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN# PL1325929 - DUE 11-20-13 AT 10:00 A.M. - Bid documents are available Monday through Friday, 9:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M., for a \$25.00 fee in the form of a money order or certified check made payable to NYCHA. Documents can also be obtained by registering with I-supplier and downloading

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Housing Authority, 90 Church Street, New York, NY 10007.

Vaughn Banks (212) 306-6727; Fax: (212) 306-5152; vaughn.banks@nycha.nyc.gov

PURCHASING

SOLICITATIONS

Goods & Services

SMD FURNISHING HUMAS, LIMESTONE

Competitive Sealed Bids/Pre-Qualified List – RFQ# 60126 AS – DUE 11-14-13 AT 10:35 A.M. – Interested firms may obtain a copy and submit it on NYCHA's website: Doing Business

Http://www.nyc.gov/html/nycha/html/business.shtml. Vendors are instructed to access the "Register Here" line for Vendor;" if you have supplied goods or services to NYCHA in the past and you have your log-in credentials, click the "Log into iSupplier" link under "Existing Upon access, reference applicable RFQ number per solicitation.

Vendor electing to submit a non-electronic bid (paper document) will be subject to a \$25.00 non-refundable fee; payable to NYCHA by USPS-Money Order/Certified Check only for each set of RFQ documents requested. Remit payment to NYCHA Finance Department at 90 Church Street, 6th Floor, New York, NY 10007; obtain receipt and present it to 6th Floor, Supply Management Dept., Procurement Group. A bid package will be generated at time of request.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms: specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Housing Authority, Supply Management Dept.,
90 Church Street, 6th Floor, New York, NY 10007.

Bid documents available via internet ONLY:
http://www.nyc.gov/html/nycha/html/business/goods_materials.
shtml Atul Shah (718) 306-4553; shaha@nycha.nyc.gov

HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION

AGENCY CHIEF CONTRACTING OFFICER

AWARDS

Human/Client Services

TEEN RAPP PROGRAM – Negotiated Acquisition – Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN# 06914H085303 – AMT: \$1,246,907.00 – TO: Center for the Elimination of Violence in the Family, Inc., 25 Chapel Street, 9th Floor, Suite 904, Brooklyn, NY 11201.

Term: 7/1/2013 - 6/30/2014. Agency PIN: 06914H085303.

NON-RESIDENTIAL SERVICES – Negotiated Acquisition – Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN# 06914H085209 – AMT: \$320,279.00 – TO: NYC Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project, 240 West 35th Street, Suite 200, New York, NY 10001. - Term: 10/1/2013 - 9/30/2014. Agency PIN: 06914H085209. TEEN RAPP PROGRAM - Negotiated Acquisition -

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

AWARDS

Human/Client Services

NON-RESIDENTIAL SERVICES FOR VICTIMS OF Negotiated Acquisition – Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN# 06906X0072CNVN010 – AMT: \$264,987.00 – TO: New York Asian Women's Center, Inc., 32 Broadway, 10th Floor, New York, NY 10004. The contract term shall be from 10/1/13 to 9/30/14 and the Internal PIN Number is 06914H085208.

PARKS AND RECREATION

REVENUE AND CONCESSIONS

SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

MANAGEMENT OF THE OCEAN BREEZE TRACK AND FIELD ATHLETIC COMPLEX – Other – PIN# R149-EX – DUE 11-13-13 AT 3:00 P.M. – In Staten Island, N.Y.

There will be a recommended proposer meeting on Wednesday, October 30, 2013 at 10:00 A.M. We will be meeting at the NYC Parks offices at the Arsenal, 830 Fifth Avenue (at 64th Street), in Manhattan. If you are considering responding to this Request for Expressions of Interest, please make every effort to attend this recommended meeting.

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Parks and Recreation, The Arsenal-Central Park, 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 407, New York, NY 10021. Matthew Gomez-Mesquita (212) 360-8293; $Fax: (212)\ 360\text{-}3434; matthew.gomez@parks.nyc.gov$

o15-28

RENOVATION, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF A CATERING FACILITY, SNACK BAR AND/OR A RESTAURANT - Competitive Sealed Proposals - Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN# Q99-C-R-2013 – DUE 12-04-13 AT 3:00 P.M. – At the Heliport Building at Flushing Meadows Corona Park, Queens.

There will be a recommended site visit on Tuesday, November 12, 2013 at 11:00 A.M. We will be meeting at the lobby of the facility. If you are considering responding to this RFP, please make every effort to attend this recommended site visit.

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, The Arsenal-Central Park, 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 407, New York, NY 10021. Charlotte Hall (212) 360-3407; Fax: (212) 360-3434;

o23-n6

YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

charlotte.hall@parks.nyc.gov

■ SOLICITATIONS

Human/Client Services

COMPREHENSIVE LITERACY SERVICES – Request for Proposals – PIN# 26014CLITRFP – DUE 12-02-13 AT 2:00 P.M. – Through this RFP, the Department of Youth and Community Development seeks appropriately qualified vendors to provide literacy services for adults, young immigrants, young adults, and adolescents living in New York City (City). This RFP will comprise of four service options.

The Adult Literacy Program will include Adult Basic Education (ABE), High School Equivalency (HSE) Test preparation, Basic Education in the Native Language (BENL), and English to Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL), instructional services for adults who are at least 16 years old and not enrolled or required to be enrolled in secondary school under New York State (State) law.

The Young Immigrant Literacy Program will include ABE/HSE and ESOL instruction for young immigrants who are at least 16 years of age and were under the age of 31 on June 15, 2012, with priority given to undocumented immigrants eligible for Deferred Action for Child Arrivals (DACA). A citywide outreach program will be funded as well as a separate component for legal services.

The Young Adult Literacy Program, offered in collaboration with the Center for Economic Opportunity (CEO), will provide pre-HSE instruction and internships to young adults ages 16-24 who are not in school and not working.

The Adolescent Literacy Program will fund literacy programs for students in grades 6-8.

DYCD is also seeking technical assistance (TA) vendors to support the Adult Literacy Program, the Young Adult Literacy Program, and the Adolescent Literacy Program.

It is anticipated that the term of the contracts awarded from this RFP for Adult Literacy Program and Adolescent Literacy Program will be for three years, from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2017 with an option to renew for up to three years. It is anticipated that the term of contracts for Young Adult Literacy Program will be for one year, from July 1,2014 to June 30, 2015, with an option to renew for up to three years. It is anticipated that the term of the contracts awarded from this RFP for Young Immigrant Literacy Program will be for one year, from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015.

The RFP can be downloaded from DYCD's website at www.nyc.gov/dycd. The RFP package is also available for pickup at DYCD's office of Contract Procurement, between the hours of 9:30 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday (excluding holidays), at 156 William Street 2nd floor, New York. Organizations sending messengers to pick up the RFP package must ensure the messenger has the name, address, phone number, fax number and contact person (including email) of the organization requesting the package. RFP packages will not be distributed without the above information.

There will be separate pre-proposal conferences for each competition. The schedule is as follows:

Adult Literacy Program - Thursday, November 14, 2013 from 2:00 P.M. to 5:00 P.M.

Young Immigrant Literacy Program - Monday, November 18, 2013 from 2:00 P.M. to 5:00 P.M.

Young Adult Literacy Program - Wednesday, November 20, 2013 from 10:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M.

Adolescent Literacy Program - Wednesday, November 20, 2013 from 2:00 P.M. to 5:00 P.M.

The conference will be held at 156 William Street, 2nd Floor Auditorium, New York, NY 10038. Attendance is optional but recommended by DYCD.

If you have questions about this solicitation please send an email to rfpquestions@dycd.nyc.gov or call $(212)\ 513-1820$.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Youth and Community Development, 156 William Street, 2nd Floor New York, NY 10033.

Dana Cantelmi (212) 442-5995; Fax: (212) 676-8129; dcoto@dycd.nyc.gov

BROOKLYN AND STATEN ISLAND DROP IN CENTER - Request for Proposals - PIN# 26014RHYRSI -

- Request for Proposals - PIN# 26014RHYBSI - DUE 11-27-13 AT 2:00 P.M. - The Department of Youth and Community Development (DYCD) is seeking qualified not-for-profit organizations to provide drop-in center services for runaway and homeless youth (RHY) and youth at risk for homelessness in Brooklyn and Staten Island.

It is anticipated that the term of the contracts awarded from this RFP will be three years, starting July 1, 2014. DYCD will have an option to renew these contracts for up to three additional years at its discretion.

The RFP can be downloaded from DYCD's website at www.nyc.gov/dycd. The RFP package is also available for pickup at DYCD's office of Contract Procurement, between

the hours of 9:30 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday (excluding holidays), at 156 William Street, 2nd Floor, New York. Organizations sending messengers to pick up the RFP package must ensure the messenger has the name, address, phone number, fax number and contact person (including email) of the organization requesting the package. RFP packages will not be distributed without the above information.

A pre-proposal conference will be held on Tuesday, November 12, 2013 at 2:00 P.M. at 156 William Street, 2nd Floor Auditorium, New York, NY 10038. Attendance is optional but recommended by DYCD.

If you have questions about this solicitation please send an email to rfpquestions@dycd.nyc.gov or call (212) 513-1820.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

bids at date and time specified above.

Department of Youth and Community Development,
156 William Street, 2nd Floor, New York, NY 10033.

Dana Cantelmi (212) 442-5995; Fax: (212) 676-8129;
dcoto@dycd.nyc.gov

☞ o28

AGENCY RULES

TAXI AND LIMOUSINE COMMISSION

■ NOTICE

Notice of Promulgation of Rules

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with section 1043(b) of the New York City Charter ("Charter") that the Taxi and Limousine Commission ("TLC") promulgates amendments to its rules for For-Hire Vehicles and certain other Licensees.

These rules are promulgated pursuant to sections 1043 and 2303 of the Charter and section 19-503 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York. The rule was not included in the Commission's regulatory agenda for this Fiscal Year.

These rules were published on September 11, 2013, for public comment in the City Record. On October 17, 2013 a public hearing was held by the TLC at its offices at 33 Beaver Street, 19th Floor, New York, New York, 10004 and the rules were adopted by the Commission at that public meeting. Pursuant to section 1043(e)(1)(c) of the Charter, these rules will go into effect 30 days following publication in the City Record.

Statement of Basis and Purpose of Rule

On December 23, 2011 Governor Cuomo signed into law chapter 602 of the Laws of 2011, and on February 17, 2012, signed into law chapter 9 of the Laws of 2012, which amended the previous statute. This legislation allows New York City to issue up to 18,000 transferable licenses to forhire vehicles authorizing them to pick up passengers by street hail anywhere outside Manhattan (except for the airports) and in Manhattan north of West 110th Street and north of East 96th Street. Up to 6,000 of these licenses for Street Hail Liveries can be issued in the first year of the program. Twenty percent of these licenses will be set aside for wheelchair accessible vehicles (City subsidies for accessible vehicle purchase/upgrades will be available).

During early 2012, the New York City Taxi and Limousine Commission (TLC) adopted rules to implement this legislation, but they were subsequently stayed during the pendency of litigation, commenced in mid-2012, which challenged the legislation. Following the successful resolution of this litigation, and as it moves forward to implement the program set forth in the legislation and rules, the TLC is amending the rules to:

- Make clear that only Street Hail Liveries may be any shade of apple green so that the public is not confused about which vehicles can be legally hailed outside of central Manhattan.
- Mandate training in wheelchair passenger assistance for all new taxicab drivers, and remove the requirement that taxicab owners pay for such training. These measures will expand the pool of drivers trained and available to drive accessible vehicles.
- Increase Paratransit Base License periods to 3 years, so that Paratransit Bases with SHL Base Permits can have the same license terms as other SHL Bases. For-Hire Bases already enjoy three year terms, as do new SHL Bases. This change will make treatment of the Paratransit Bases, which may purchase SHL Base Permits, consistent with those of For-Hire Bases.

These rules are authorized by Section 2303 of the Charter and Section 19-503 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York.

New material is underlined.
[Deleted material is in brackets.]

Section 1. Subdivision (a) of section 53-07 of Title 35 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended to read as follows:

- (a) Reserved [Passenger Assistance Training.
 - (1) Taxicab Owner Must Pay for Training. The Taxicab Owner is responsible for paying any fees required to train each of Owner's Approved Drivers under Section 54-04(n) of these Rules.

53-07(a)(1) Fine: 50 Appearance: NOT Required]

§2. Paragraph (1) of subdivision (n) of section 54-04 of Title

35 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended, and a new paragraph (5) is added, to read as follows:

- (1) Training Must be Approved by Commission. In order to become a driver of an Accessible Taxicab, a Driver, and on and after January 1, 2014, all new Applicants for a Taxicab Driver's License, must attend a Commission-approved training course regarding Wheelchair Passenger assistance.
- (5) Beginning January 1, 2014, a new Applicant for a Taxicab Driver's License must present proof of completion or other evidence that he or she has completed the training with his or her application. Failure to provide such proof or other evidence will result in denial of the application.
- §3. Subdivision (d) of section 59A-29 of Title 35 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended to read as follows:
- (d) [Taxicab Yellow] Prohibited Colors for Vehicle Exteriors. No For-Hire Vehicle can be, in whole or in part, any shade of Taxicab Yellow, and no For-Hire Vehicle not licensed and Valid to operate as a Street Hail Livery can be, in whole or in part, any shade of Apple Green as authorized for use with a Street Hail Livery provided in Chapter 82 of these Rules.
- §4. Subdivision (f)(3)(i) of section 59B-06 of Title 35 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended to read as follows:
- (3) Upon issuance of a Street Hail Livery Base License:
- (i) the underlying Base License or Paratransit Base License term will be pro-rated (and the License fee for that License will be pro-rated which means an additional fee will be charged) so that the Base License will expire on the same date that the Street Hail Livery Base License expires. Example. The underlying Base License expires on 6/15/14. A Street Hail Livery Base License is issued to the Base on 6/16/12 and will expire on 6/15/15. The underlying Base License will be extended for one year and an additional 1 year license fee of \$500 will be charged. The underlying Base License and the Street Hail Livery Base License will both expire on 6/15/15.

§5. Subdivisions (a) and (b) of section 60B-05 of Title 35 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended to read as follows:

- (a) New Licenses. The term of a new Base License is $[two] \underline{three}$ years.
- (b) Renewals. The renewal term of a Base License is [two] three years from the date on which the previous License expired.

 $\S6$. Section 82-52(a) of Title 35 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended to read as follows:

(a) [Color] <u>Apple Green</u>. The exterior of the vehicle must be painted [Street Hail Livery color designated] <u>Apple Green</u> (paint codes Dupont – GS028 or PPG – 502757 or similar), except for the trim. [See Section 82-33(j)] <u>Samples of paint color and code are to be submitted to the Chair for approval if not those specified.</u>

• o28

SPECIAL MATERIALS

ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES

NOTICE

In advance of the release of a Request for Proposals (RFP), the New York City Administration for Children's Services (ACS) is posting a concept paper setting forth the services that potential, qualified vendors will be able to provide for Respite Care services to youth who have come into contact with, or are at risk of coming into contact with the juvenile justice system. Through the RFP, ACS seeks to develop a new program model that emphasizes the engagement of at-risk and vulnerable populations of youth within our continuum of care, and reinforces fundamental expectations of accountability for outcomes and child and family-centered practices.

The concept paper will be posted on the ACS website, https://a068-aprodapp15.nyc.gov/rfponline/under Business Opportunities - Concept Papers from November 2, 2013 to December 17, 2013. All comments in response to the concept paper should be in writing via e-mail to: respitcare@dfa.state.ny.us

● o28-n1

CITY PLANNING

NOTICE

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF A FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT

Rheingold Rezoning

Project Identification CEQR No. 09DCP002K ULURP Nos. 110179ZRK 080322MK, 070250MMK Lead Agency City Planning Commission 22 Reade Street, Room 1W New York, New York 10007

SEQRA Classification: Unlisted

Contact Person Robert Dobruskin

Robert Dobruskin, Director (212) 720-3423 Environmental Assessment and Review Division New York City Department of City Planning

Pursuant to City Environmental Quality Review (CEQR), Mayoral Executive Order No. 91 of 1977, CEQR Rules of Procedure of 1991 and the regulations of Article 8 of the State Environmental Conservation Law, State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) as found in 6 NYCRR Part 617, a Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) has been prepared for the action described below.

The Applicant, Forrest Lots, LLC, is requesting a zoning map amendment, a zoning text amendment, and changes to the city map (collectively, the "Proposed Action") affecting an approximately 6 block area within the Bushwick neighborhood of Brooklyn, Community District 4. The affected area is generally bounded by Flushing Avenue, Evergreen Avenue, Melrose Street, Stanwix Street, Forrest Street. Garden Street, and Beaver Street. The Proposed Action would rezone all or portions of Blocks 3137, 3138, 3139, 3140, 3141 and 3152. The affected area is currently zoned M1-1 and M3-1, light and heavy manufacturing districts, respectively. The proposed zoning map amendment would rezone the area M1-2, R6A and R7A with selected C2-4 commercial overlays. The proposed zoning text amendment would establish the Inclusionary Housing program within the proposed R6A and R7A districts within the rezoning area. The City Map change would establish the section of Stanwix Street from Montieth Street to Forrest Street and the section of Noll Street between Evergreen Avenue and Stanwix Street as mapped streets.

The Proposed Action would facilitate a proposal by the Applicant to redevelop four sites with 54,182 square feet (sf) of local retail space and 977 dwelling units (DUs), of which 242 DUs would be affordable to low-to-moderate-income households, per the Inclusionary Housing regulations (47 units would be set aside for senior housing) by 2016. For environmental analysis purposes, the FEIS projects that on the Applicant's sites the Proposed Action would result in a net increase of 54,182 sf of local retail space and 977 dwelling units (DUs), of which 195 DUs would be affordable to low-tomoderate-income households, per the Inclusionary Housing regulations. In addition, the Proposed Action could facilitate new development on four sites not under the applicant's control. On these properties, the Proposed Action could result in a net increase of 99 DUs, of which 20 DUs would be affordable per the Inclusionary Housing regulations, and 20,013 sf of local retail. In total, the Proposed Action is expected to result in development on eight (8) sites generating a net increase of approximately 1,076 DUs, of which 215 would be considered affordable, and 74,194 sf of local retail.

The Proposed Action includes (E) designations (E-315) for hazardous materials, noise, and air quality. The (E) designation is a mechanism that ensures no significant adverse impacts would result from a proposed action because of steps that would be undertaken prior to the development of a rezoned site. The (E) designation would ensure that these identified sites would not be developed unless necessary remedial measures are implemented.

The FEIS identifies potential significant adverse impacts related to open space, community facilities (elementary schools) and transportation (traffic). Measures to mitigate the community facilities and open space impacts were explored and evaluated in between the Draft and EIS in consultation with the New York City School Construction Authority (SCA), the New York City Department of Education (DOE), the New York City Department of Parks (DPR) and the lead agency, DCP. The FEIS identifies measures that would fully mitigate impacts for community facilities and traffic and partially mitigate open space impacts. Absent the implementation of the measures identified in the FEIS, the Proposed Action could have an unmitigated significant adverse impact on elementary schools. While the identified impact to open space could be partially mitigated with the measures identified in the FEIS, it would still constitute an unavoidable significant adverse impact on open space resources. As the significant adverse impact on open space would not be fully mitigated, the Proposed Action would result in an unavoidable adverse impact on open space.

The FEIS evaluates three alternatives to the proposed action: a No Action Alternative, a Lower Density Alternative, and a No Impact Alternative.

Copies of the FEIS are available for public inspection at the office of the undersigned. The proposal involves actions by the City Planning Commission and Council of the City of New York pursuant to Uniform Land Use Review Procedures (ULURP). A public hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) was held on September 11, 2013. Written comments on the DEIS were requested and were received by the Lead Agency until September 23, 2013. The FEIS incorporates responses to the public comments received on the DEIS and additional analysis conducted subsequent to the completion of the DEIS.

http://www.nyc.gov/html/dcp/html/env_review/eis.shtml

● o28

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION **COMMISSION**

NOTICE

ADVISORY REPORTS

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/12/2013

14-8501

SRA#: SRA 14-8366

ADDRESS CENTRAL PARK **BOROUGH: BLOCK/LOT:**

MANHATTAN 1111/1

SCENIC LANDMARK

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Commissioner of the Department of Parks and Recreation

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for stabilizing and anchoring sections at rocks, which are at risk of movement and detachment, at eight outcroppings of Manhattan and Hartland schist. located within various sections of the park, including installing untensioned anchors (dowels) and rock bolts at all eight outcroppings, installing grout injections at one outcroping, and installing galvanized steel netting at two sections of one outcropping, as well as planting vines to help conceal the proposed netting, removing a section of loose rocks at one outcropping, and providing a temporary protection enclosure for an existing sculpture ("Still Hunt") at one of the outcroppings while the stabilization work is underway, as described in written specifications, dated April 2013 and (received) September 11, 2013, and shown in marked photographs and drawings, titled "Parkwide Rock Outcrop Assessment," numbered 1 through 18 by the Commission staff, and dated received August 2013, all submitted by Marie Warsh, on behalf of the Central Park Conservancy, as components of the application.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that Central Park Scenic Landmark Designation Report describes the park as an English Romantic style public park designed in 1856 by Olmsted and Vaux. The Commission also notes that Advisory Staff Report 09-0834 (LPC 09-0559) was issued on June 13, 2008 for emergency stabilization work at the stone outcroppings at the walls of the 96th Street Transverse

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds that the work will address existing safety hazards, without eliminating any significant, protected features of the park; that the proposed installations will help stabilize the rocks, thereby helping to support their long term preservation in their historic locations; that the installations will be limited to the minimum amount and types necessary to stabilize and anchor the rocks; that all of the anchors and grout injections will be concealed from view; that the rok bolts will be concealed from view, if feasible, and, if visible, will be simply designed and small in relation to the outcroppings; that the netting will be simply designed and only be installed at one outcropping, with plantings used to help conceal its presence; that only a small section of loose rocks at the 97th Street Transverse Roadway will be removed; that the removal of limited portion of rocks from the roadway will not diminish the character of the roadway, which maintains a substantial amount of the naturalistic stone outcroppings; that the temporary protection enclosure will help protect the sculpture from damage and be removed after the completion of the stabilization and anchoring work; that none of the proposed work will detract from any significant landscape features or prominent vistas; and that the work will support the significant historic and naturalistic character of the Central Park Scenic Landmark.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Bernadette Artus.

Robert B. Tierney, Chair

cc: Caroline Kane Levy, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC; D. Blonsky, Central Park Conservancy; Marie R. Warsh, Central Park Conservancy; The Public Design Commission

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/18/2013

SRA#: SRA 14-8589

ADDRESS 11 FULTON STREET BOROUGH: BLOCK/LOT: MANHATTAN 96/1

SOUTH STREET SEAPORT

SOUTH STREET SEAPORT

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Richard Cote, President, NYC Economic Development Corporation

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for interior alterations at the first through fourth floors, including interior demolition; as shown in drawings labeled DM-000.00, DM-001.00-1, DM-002.00-1, DM-003.00-1, DM-004.00-1, DM-005.00-1, DM-006.00-1, DM-101.00, DM-102.00, DM-103.00, DM-104.00, DM-105.00, DM-106.00. DM-110.00, DM-111.00, and DM-400.00, dated August 22, 2013, prepared by Christpher R. Sharples, R.A. and DM-P-101.00-1, DM-P-102.00-1, DM-P-103.00-1, DM-P-104.00.0. DM-P-105.00-1, DM-P-106.00-1, DM-P-201.00-1, DM-P-201 00-2. DM-P-202.00-2, DM-P-204.00-1, DM-M-101.00-1, DM-M-102.00-1, DM-M-103.00-1, DM-M-104.00-1, DM-M-105.00-1, DM-M-105.00-2, DM-M-105.00-3, DM-M-105.00-4,

DM-M-106.00-1, DM-M-201.00-1, DM-M-201.00-2, DM-M-202.00-1, DM-M-202.00-2, DM-M-204.00-1, DM-M-205.00-1, DM-M-205.00-2, DM-E-101.00-1, DM-E-102.00-1, DM-E-103.00-1, DM-E-104.00-1, DM-E-105.00-1, DM-E-106.00-1, DM-E-204.00-1, DM-E-205.00-1, DM-E-205.00-2, DM-E-205.00-3, DM-E-205.00-4, DM-FP-101.00-1, DM-FP-103.00-1, DM-FP-104.00-1, DM-FP-105.00-1, DM-FP-106.00-1, DM-FP-202.00-1, DM-FP-202.00-2, DM-FP-204.00-1, dated August 22, 2013, prepared by Gregory R. Schnackel, P.E. and submitted as components of the application.

The Commission has reviewed the application and these drawings and finds that the work will have no effect on significant protected features of the building.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Gabriela Gutowski.

Robert B. Tierney Chair

cc: Jared Knowles, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC; Frank Deleon, Milrose Consultants

ISSUE DATE: 09/23/2013

DOCKET#: 14-9034

SRA#: SRA 14-8765

ADDRESS CENTRAL PARK

BLOCK/LOT: **BOROUGH:** MANHATTAN 1111/1

South Gate House, Central Park Reservoir SCENIC LANDMARK

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Assistant Commissioner,

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The staff of the Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for the removal and replacement of asphalt roofing and underlying decking; as shown and described in photographs and a letter, dated September 16, 2013, prepared by Angela M. DeLillo, P.E., NYC DEP.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds that the roof is leaking and in need of repair; that the removal of the existing asphalt roofing system will not cause the removal of significant architectural fabric; and that the proposed asphalt shingles will closely match the existing in terms of color and dimension, to mimic the appearance of slate. Based on these findings, the Commission has determined the work to be appropriate to the Central Park Scenic Landmark. The work, therefore, is approved.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Jared Knowles.

Robert B. Tierney

cc: Sarah Carroll, Director of Preservation/LPC

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/30/2013

SRA#: 14-9335

SRA 14-8977

ADDRESS $CENTRAL\ PARK$ **BOROUGH:** BLOCK/LOT: MANHATTAN 1111/1

Northwest Gate House, Central Park Reservoir

SCENIC LANDMARK

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Assistant Commissioner,

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The staff of the Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for the removal and replacement of an access hatch and skylight at the roof; as shown and described in photographs and a letter, dated September 24, 2013, prepared by Angela M. DeLillo, P.E., NYC DEP.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds that the skylight and access hatch are severely deteriorated and in need of repair; that the removal of the existing skylight and hatch will not cause the removal of significant architectural fabric; and that the proposed work will help to maintain the structure in a sound watertight condition. Based on these findings, the Commission has determined the work to be appropriate to the Central Park Scenic Landmark. The work, therefore, is approved.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Jared Knowles.

Robert B. Tierney

cc: Sarah Carroll, Director of Preservation/LPC

☞ o28

BINDING REPORTS

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/04/2013

14-4925

SRB#: SRB 14-8100

ADDRESS CENTRAL PARK

interior landmark

BOROUGH:

BLOCK/LOT: MANHATTAN 1111/1

Tavern on the Green SCENIC LANDMARK

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Commissioner of the Department of Parks and Recreation

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for interior alterations only throughout the building, including the demolition and construction of nonbearing partitions, as well as structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, and HVAC work, as shown on drawings T-002.00, T-003.00, DM-111.00, A-100.00, A-110.00 through A-113.00, A-120.00, A-121.00, A-122.00, A-130.00, A-140.00, A-210.00 through A-218.00, A-310.00, A-410.00, A-420.00, A-510.00 through A-513.00, A-520.00, A-521.00, A-522.00, A-600.00 through A-611.00, A-620.00 through A-626.00, A-630.00, A-631.00, A-632.00, A-640.00 through A-646.00, A-700.00 through A-704.00, A-710.00, A-800.00 through A-807.00, A-890.00, A-900.00, and A-901.00, dated (issued) April 3, 2013 and prepared by Richard H. Lewis, RA; drawings M-001.00, M-100.00, M-101.00, M-102.00, M-301.00, M-302.00, M-401.00, P-001.00, P-100.00, P-101.00, P-102.00, P-401.00, P-402.00, P-403.00, and P-601.00, dated April 3, 0213 and prepared by Daniel Alan Hampson, PE; and drawings S-001.00, S-100.00, S-101.00, S-103.00, dated April 3, 2013 and prepared by Philip D. Murray, PE, all submitted as components of the application.

The Commission also notes that exterior work at the building, previously approved by Binding Commission Report 12-2608 (LPC 12-8180), issued on June 4, 2012, Miscellaneous/Amendment 14-2286 (LPC 14-2375), issued on March 28, 2013, and Miscellaneous/Amendment 14-8099 (LPC 14-0575), issued on September 4, 2013, and exterior alterations to the surrounding parkland, previously reviewed under Advisory Commission Report 14-2285 (LPC 14-0345),

issued on March 28, 2013, are shown on the approved drawings; and that some of the windows and doors at the exterior facades of the building included on the proposed condition elevations, as documentation of existing conditions, do not exactly replicate the existing conditions or the approved replacement infill for these locations.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Bernadette Artus.

Robert B. Tierney Chair

cc: Caroline Kane Levy, Deputy Director of Preservation/ LPC; Theresa Braddick, NYC Department of Parks & Recreation; Anthony D. Macari/NYC Department of Parks & Recreation; L. Balestier & D. Richards/Jam Consultants

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/10/2013 13-1107

SRB#: SRB 14-8301

ADDRESS

BOROUGH: STUYVESANT SQUARE PARK MANHATTAN

BLOCK/LOT:

HISTORIC DISTRICT STUYVESANT SQUARE

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Commissioner of the Department of Parks and Recreation

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for work at the eastern half of Stuyvesant Square Park and the adjoining sidewalks, including temporarily removing and reinstalling the historic cast iron perimeter fencing in order to facilitate repairs and repainting of the fencing and to provide access for below grade work; repairing the fencing by selectively removing previous unsympathetic and failing repair installations, replacing missing and damaged elements with new cast iron replicas, reattaching displaced or disconnected elements, and selectively repairing damaged portions, utilizing patching compounds, welding, and the installation of concealed mechanical fasteners and supports; cleaning and refinishing the fencing, using abrasive methods for removals and primer and black paint for the refinishing; replacing existing granite bases, beneath the historic perimeter fencing, with new granite bases, with foundations extending beneath the frost line; replacing existing concrete curbing and paving, adjacent to the park side of the fencing and extending beneath portions of the fence, which are not continuous throughout the park, with a continuous bluestone curbing, set parallel and close to the fencing, serving to retain soil within the park and away from the fencing, and adjoining bluestone paving extending from the new curbing and under the fence panels to abut the sidewalk paving; replacing deteriorated bluestone paving at the Perlman Place sidewalk with new bluestone paving; replacing asphalt hex block pavers at the 15th and 17th Street sidewalks and poured asphalt paving at the 2nd Avenue sidewalk with bluestone paving, set on a bed of sand at Perlman Place and on a concrete base through the remainder of the sidewalks; slightly modifying the grade level of the sidewalk paving to improve drainage and comply with governmental regulations; adjusting existing utility appurtenance at the sidewalks to align with the surface of the adjoining paving as needed; replacing granite entrance thresholds and limited sections of asphalt paving, within the park, adjacent to the entrances, with new thresholds and paving, matching the existing in terms of materials and design and aligned with the replacement sidewalk paving; replacing sloped asphalt and concrete paving at existing pedestrian crossings at the sidewalks and a section of existing asphalt hex block paving at a new barrier free pedestrian crossing location at the corner of Perlman Place and 16th Street with new sloped and tinted concrete paving, featuring a textured surface ("detectable warning bumps") and finished to blend with color of the surrounding bluestone paving; resetting the existing granite curbing at Perlman Place to a level placement and replacing or modifying the granite curbing at the new barrier free pedestrian crossing, matching the level of the adjoining paving; replacing concrete curbing at the 15th and 17th Street sidewalks with granite curbing; replacing one existing bollard, near the Perlman Place park entrance, to a nearby location, improving barrier free access at the entrance; and below-grade plumbing work,

as described in written specifications, including a Conditions Assessment and Treatment Report, dated June 23, 2011 and supplemental written specifications, dated (received) May 24, 2013, August 9, 2013 and September 10, 2013, and shown in photographs; existing condition drawings, labeled B-1 through B-68 and dated June 2011; and drawings LS-101, $L\text{-}101,\,L\text{-}102,\,L\text{-}103,\,L\text{-}201\;through\;L\text{-}211,\,L\text{-}401\;through}$ L-405, L-501 through L-508, and L-601, dated March 18, 2013 and prepared by the New York City Department of Parks and Recreation, all submitted as components of the application.

In reviewing this application, the Commission notes that the Stuyvesant Square Historic District describes Stuyvesant Square Park as a public park, originally designed circa 1840s and redesigned in 1946; and that the style, scale, materials and details of the park are among the features that contribute to the special and historic character of the historic district. The Commission also notes that Commission Report (LPC 80-354) was issued on July 14, 1980 for the rehabilitation of Stuyvesant Square Park; that the interior of the park has been reconstructed within the last 25 years, using designs and materials that reflect its historic design and character; that Binding Staff Report 98-4311 (LPC 98-4023) was issued on February 23, 1998, approving the replacement of modern paving with bluestone paving at the park and adjoing sidewalks and the installation of a bollard and signage; that Staff Report 05-4489 (LPC 05-4144) was issued on December 27, 2004, approving the replacement and resetting of pavers at the eastern portion of the park; and that Staff Binding Report 11-6473 (LPC 11-6279) was issued on February 4, 2011, approving the replacement of paving at the western half of the park.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds that the work is restorative in nature and will address existing deteriorated; that the temporary removal of the fencing will help facilitate the restoration of this historic feature; that the fencing will be reinstalled to match its original placement; that the repair and cleaning methods for the fencing will help return the fencing closer to its historic appearance, without causing damage to the historic fabric; that the replacement of portions of the fencing is warranted by the deteriorated conditions of these elements; that the replacement fencing units will match the historic units in terms of placement, material, dimensions, design, profiles, and details; that the proposed paint finish will be in keeping with historic finishes at fencing of this type, style, and age and wil match the finish of the fencing at the remainder of the park; that the abovegrade portions of the granite bases will match the historic bases; that the replacement of the existing foundations with new foundations, extending below the frost line, will help maintain the stability of the fencing and protect it from future disrepair; that the proposed curbing, within the park, and adjoining paving will help prevent soil erosion from covering the bases of the fencing, thereby maintaining the historic appearance and above grade placement of the bases and protecting the bases from damage due to soil moisture; that the small size, simple design, and material of the proposed curbing, within the park, and the adjoining paving, will match existing conditions at the other half of the park and will help the installation remain a discreet presence, which will not detract from the appearance of the fencing or park; that the replacement of the existing bluestone paving is warranted by its deteriorated condition; that the replacement of the existing asphalt hex block paving, poured asphalt paving, and concrete curbing and paving will not eliminate any significant historic fabric from the site; that the proposed bluestone paving and granite thresholds will match the existing historic masonry in terms of materials, design, and configuration; that the new bluestone paving will only be installed over a concrete slab in locations at which motor vehicles will likely cross over the paving, warranting the need for additional support, and, at the remainder of the installation locations, will be installed on a bed of sand, with hand tight joints, in keeping with historic installation methods; that the regrading work will only feature slight adjustments to the grade level, which will address governmental regulations and drainage requirements; that the proposed pedestrian crossing location will be typical in size and placement and utilize materials and finishes which will help unify it with the surrounding paving; that the existing granite curbing will be retained and reinstalled in its existing locations, except at the new pedestrian crossing location, at which it will be installed in a typical lower placement; that the existing bollard is not an original feature of the park and the relocation of this small and simply designed element will not detract from any significant architectural or landscape features; and that the cumulative effect of the work will support the long term preservation of the fencing, park and sidewalks.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Bernadette Artus.

Robert B. Tierney

Chair

cc: Caroline Kane Levy, Deputy Director of Preservation/ LPC; Sybil Young/NYC Department of Parks & Recreation; John Krawchuk/NYC Department of Parks & Recreation

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: SRB#: 09/11/2013 14-8137 SRB 14-8325

BOROUGH: **BLOCK/LOT:** ADDRESS GOVERNORS ISLAND MANHATTAN

HISTORIC DISTRICT GOVERNOR'S ISLAND

To the Mayor, the Council, and the President, The Trust for Governor's Island

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for the construction of a one-story shed building with a footprint of 10' by 12' adjacent to the existing communications tower and wood fence enclosure located at the south façade; as shown in existing condition photographs, documents titled "Governor's Island VTS Site Restoration, written statement dated August 9, 2013, prepared by William G. Smith II of the United States Coast Guard, and a written statement dated August 13, 2013, prepared by Claire Kelly of the Trust for Governor's Island.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that the Governor's Island Historic District designation report describes Building 400, Liggett Hall, as a neo-Georgian style barracks building designed by the office of McKim, Mead & White, and built in 1929-30, with a dormitory wing (Section O) added in 1967-68 designed by Roberts and Schaefer Co., Inc.; and that the building's style, scale, materials, and details are among the features that contribute to the special architectural and historic character of the Governor's Island Historic District.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds that the proposed shed structure is low scale, and will not obscure significant architectural features of the building; that the structure is largely blocked from view from Division Street behind the existing fence; and that the proposed building will be an unobtrusive presence within the setting. Based on these findings, the Commission determines the proposed work to be appropriate to the building and to the Governor's Island Historic District.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of

The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Carly Bond.

Robert B. Tierney Chair

cc: Jared Knowles, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/11/2013

14-7655

SRB#: SRB 14-8322

10/1

ADDRESS

BLOCK/LOT: BOROUGH:

GOVERNORS ISLAND MANHATTAN HISTORIC DISTRICT

GOVERNOR'S ISLAND

To the Mayor, the Council, and the President, The Trust for Governor's Island

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for the temporary installation of five (5) speakers at the south façade associated with a sound art installation; four of the speakers will be clamped to the iron porch railings, and one speaker bolted to the mortar joints of the

Section O façade of the building; as shown in existing condition photographs, building plan, and a written statement dated August 12, 2013, prepared by Claire Kelly of the Trust for Governor's Island.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that the Governor's Island Historic District designation report describes Building 400, Liggett Hall, as a neo-Georgian style barracks building designed by the office of McKim, Mead & White, and built in 1929-30, with a dormitory wing (Section O) added in 1967-68 designed by Roberts and Schaefer Co., Inc.; and that the building's style, scale, materials, and details are among the features that contribute to the special architectural and historic character of the Governor's Island

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds in accordance with the Rules of the City of New York, Title 63, Section 2-18, that the temporary installation is defined as an installation for one calendar year, and renewed for two additional periods for a total of three years; that the installation will not cause damage to protected architectural features of the property; and that an acceptable plan and time scheduled for the dismantling of the property has been submitted to the Commission as a component of the application.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval.

The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Carly Bond.

Robert B. Tierney Chair

cc: Jared Knowles, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/18/2013

14-8152

SRB#: SRB 14-8581

BOROUGH: 1930 SEDGEWICK AVENUE BRONX

BLOCK/LOT: 3222/62

Begrisch Hall at Bronx Community College INDIVIDUAL LANDMARK

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Vice President of Finance, Bronx Community College

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for work at the primary entrance steps, including the removal and in-kind replacement of the granite treads and landing slab, and smooth finish stainless steel handrails; as shown in existing condition photographs and drawing A- $001.00\ dated\ August\ 12,\ 2013,\ prepared\ by\ Theodore\ G.$ Rieper, R.A., and submitted as components of the application.

wing this proposal, the Commission notes that the designation report describes Begrisch Hall at the Bronx Community College as a Brutalist style building designed by Marcel Breuer and Associates, and built in 1956-61.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds that the proposed work will maintain the buildings unique handrail design; that the historic size of the landing will be maintained, and that the slight widening of the treads 4' beyond the existing condition, will be not a perceptible change and will prevent breakage at the edge of the treads; and that the proposed work will enhance the special architectural and historic character of this Individual Landmark. The work, therefore, is approved.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The

applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Carly Bond.

Robert B. Tierney Chair

cc: Jared Knowles, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: SRB#: 09/20/2013 SRB 14-8713 14-9002

BOROUGH: BLOCK/LOT: **ADDRESS** 476 FIFTH AVENUE MANHATTAN

The New York Public Library INTERIOR LANDMARK

To the Mayor, the Council, and the V.P. for Capital Planning & Construction, NYPL

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for the temporary installation of fabric around the four middle columns and a vinyl banner sign tied to the columns and spanning between the center entryway fronting Fifth Avenue; installing two banners at the Commission approved locations on the masonry piers flanking the portico openings (LPC Docket 11-3303); installing portable monitors, moveable tables, portable signage and banner signs within Astor Hall and at the base of the staircases; installing two portable monitors, and directional signage within the McGraw Rotunda (third floor central hall); and that all of the installations will be installed on September 30, 2013 or a later date and all of the installations will be removed by October 8, 2013; as described and shown in a written description of the "NBC Education Nation" exhibit installations; color renderings; site plans and color renderings labeled Astor Hall, Astor Hall Staircases and McGraw Rotunda; all prepared by Production Glue, LLC, and submitted as components of the application.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that the New York Public Library is a Beaux-Arts civic structure designed by Carrere & Hastings and constructed in 1898-1911; and that the library's main lobby, north and south staircases and third-floor central hall comprise a designated New York City Interior Landmark.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds, in accordance with the provisions set forth in Title 63 of the Rules of the City of New York, Section 2-18, that the portable monitors, tables, coat check, signage and banners will be installed for a single period of sixty (60) days or less; that the temporary installations will not cause damage to significant protected architectural features on the exterior or interior of the property; that the proposed fabric on the columns, monitors, signage and banners will not penetrate any masonry surfaces, nor will the fabric discolor the underlying masonry; and that an acceptable plan and time schedule for the dismantling of the monitors, tables, coat check, signage and banners has been submitted to the Commission as a component of the application. Based on these findings, the Commission determined that the work is appropriate to this Interior Landmark and Individual Landmark. The work, therefore, is approved.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Jared Knowles.

Robert B. Tierney

Chair

cc: Sarah Carroll, Director of Preservation/LPC

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/24/2013 14-8726

SRB#: SRB 14-8792

BLOCK/LOT: **ADDRESS BOROUGH:** HIGH BRIDGE MANHATTAN 2106/1

High Bridge, Aqueduct and Pedestrian Walk INDIVIDUAL LANDMARK

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Associate Commissioner,

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for the restoration and rehabilitation of the subject premises, including removing paint and cleaning at the exterior facades, using chemical strippers, a restoration cleaner and low pressure water rinses; replacing missing, flawed and damaged sections of exterior stonework in-kind; temporarily removing and resetting the masonry at the parapets and the upper sections of exterior facades; repointing throughout the exterior facades; replacing the existing concrete roof in-kind; installing flashing at the interior of the parapet walls; re-opening brick and stucco sealed ventilation openings at the eastern and western facades; installing exterior metal grilles, and perforated metal screens behind the grilles, within the restored openings; removing the concrete-block infill from the eastern facade entrance opening; the installation of paired paneled metal doors within the masonry opening; repairing a section of an existing stucco patch at the northern facade to match the surrounding stucco material; and interior alterations. including temporarily removing and resetting displaced sections of the interior arch brickwork, disassembling and rebuilding sections of the masonry back-up walls and masonry infill above the interior arch, repointing, repairing cracked bricks, and replacing interior masonry in-kind, as needed, as shown in current condition photographs; written specifications; and drawings labeled GN-1 through GN-3, CN-1, R-1 through R-5, and A-1 through A-8, all dated August 15, 2013, prepared by Judith Saltzman, R.A., and submitted as components of the application.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that the building was constructed as a gatehouse for the High Bridge Aqueduct, built between 1838 and 1848.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds that the work is restorative in nature; that the paint removal and cleaning will return the natural color, texture and finish to the facades, while utilizing the gentlest methods available; that the reconstruction of the parapets and portions of the facades, replacement of masonry and installation of flashing will return the facades to sound condition and help insure the weatherproofing of the masonry; that the upper portions of the exterior facades and the parapets, including the coping, will be rebuilt to match the existing in terms of material, placement, size, dimensions, profiles and finishes; that any replacement stones will match the existing in terms of material, size, color, texture, coursing and finishes; that the repointing will be compatible with the historic masonry in terms of composition, and will match the original mortar in terms of color, texture, and tooling; that the ventilation openings will be restored to their historic condition; that the design, dimensions and placement of the proposed grilles and doors will match existing historic grilles and doors within another High Bridge Aqueduct gatehouse, matching this gatehouse in style and design; that the screens be obscured from view by the grilles and that the work will not alter or destroy significant features of the building. The work, therefore, is approved.

This approval is contingent upon the Commission's review and approval of a paint and mortar analysis, proposed mortar and exterior paint color samples, shop drawings of the proposed exterior stonework replacement and stone samples prior to the commencement of the related work. Please contact the Landmarks Preservation Commission staff when the samples are ready.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Jared Knowles.

Robert B. Tierney Chair

cc: Sarah Carroll, Director of Preservation/LPC

ISSUE DATE: DOCKET#: 09/26/2013 14-8890

SRB#: SRB 14-8852

ADDRESS 159 JOHN STREET

BOROUGH: **BLOCK/LOT:** MANHATTAN

HISTORIC DISTRICT SOUTH STREET SEAPORT

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Senior Vice President,

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for the removal of window sash from three openings located at the second floor of the rear elevation; the installation of louvers within the openings and related mechanical and structural alterations at the basement level and first and second floors; as shown on drawings labeled T-001.00, G-001.00, G-101.00 through G-103.00, D-401.00 and D-402.00, all dated May 31, 2013, D-403.00, dated May 2, 2013, A-401.00, A-403.00, and A-501.00, all dated July 12, 2013, prepared by Anne Marie M. Edden, R.A., S-402.00 and SS-403.00 both dated May 31, 2013, S-501.00 and S-502.00, both dated July 12, 2013, prepared by Thorbjorn Hansson, P.E.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that the South Street Seaport Historic District designation report describes 2-12 Fulton Street (eastern Schermerhorn Row) are Georgian-Federal style counting-houses built in 1811; 14-18 Fulton Street (western Schermerhorn Row, aka 195 and 197 Front Street) are Georgian-Federal style counting-houses built in 1812; 159-163 John Street (aka 181-189 Front Street) as Greek Revival style counting-house built in 1835-36, with a sixth story added in 1917; 165 John Street (Codwise Row) as a Greek Revival style counting-house built in 1811; 167-171 John Street as brownstone counting-house built in 1850 with a cast iron storefront designed by Daniel D. Badger; and 191 and 193 Front Street as late 18th century buildings later altered in the 19th century. The Commission also notes that the Schermerhorn Row Block, an Individual Landmark, is comprised of 2-18 Fulton Street, 189-195 Front Street, 159-171 John Street and 91-92 South Street.

With regard to the proposal, the Commission finds, that the rear elevation is not visible from any public thoroughfare; that the proposed louver will be installed in an existing window opening; that the windows are not special windows (is a segmental or curved head window which does not possess any other characteristic of a special window); and that no significant architectural feature of the building will be affected by the installation of louvers.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Jared Knowles.

Robert B. Tierney

cc: Sarah Carroll, Director of Preservation/LPC

ISSUE DATE: 09/30/2013

DOCKET#: 12-7546

SRB#: $\mathrm{SRB}\ 14\text{-}8973$

<u>ADDRESS</u> 16 ERICSSON PLACE **BOROUGH:**

MANHATTAN

BLOCK/LOT: 190/33

HISTORIC DISTRICT TRIBECA WEST

To the Mayor, the Council, and the Captain, New York City Police Department

This report is issued pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City or is to be constructed upon property owned by the City and is or is to be located on a landmark site or in a historic district or which contains an interior landmark.

The Landmarks Preservation Commission has reviewed a proposal for work at the southern portion of the roof, including the installation of two (2) exhaust fans and one (1)condensing unit on dunnage, and associated ductwork; at the second floor of the secondary west elevation, the installation of one (1) metal door in a new masonry opening, and a stair

with railings and corrugated metal roof to access the alley; modifications to the existing service alley gate, including the removal of the solid metal paneling at the upper portion of the pickets; and interior alterations including changes to mechanical systems; as shown in existing condition photographs and drawings A-001-00 through A-005-00 dated April 23, 2013, prepared by Mike Farahani, P.E.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that the Tribeca West Historic District designation report describes 16 Ericsson Place, the First Police Precinct Station House, as a neo-Renaissance Revival style police station house and stable designed by Hoppin & Koen and built in 1912; and that the building's style, scale, materials and details are among the features that contribute to the special architectural and historic character of the Tribeca West Historic District.

With regard to this proposal, the Commission finds in accordance with the Rules of the City of New York, Title 63, Section 2-19, that the rooftop additions consist solely of mechanical equipment; that the installations do not result in damage to, or demolition or, a significant architectural feature of the roof of the structure; that the units will not be visible from a public thoroughfare; and that the work does not adversely affect significant architectural features of adjacent improvements. The Commission further finds that the proposed door and stair will not result in damage to significant architectural features of the west elevation; that the stair is proposed at the rear of the alley, at a great distance from the designed Ericsson Place façade; and that the proposed work is largely blocked from view by the alley gate. Based on these findings, the Commission determines the proposed work to be appropriate to the building and the Tribeca West Historic District. The work, therefore, is approved.

This permit is issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original or historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of approval. The work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This report constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Carly Bond.

Robert B. Tierney

cc: John Weiss, Deputy Counsel/LPC; Jared Knowles, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC

☞ o28

MISCELLANEOUS/AMENDMENTS

September 4, 2013

ISSUED TO:

Veronica M. White **NYC Department of Parks & Recreation** The Arsenal, Central Park 830 Fifth Avenue New York, NY 10065

Re: MISCELLANEOUS/AMENDMENTS

LPC - 14-0575 MISC 14-8099 CENTRAL PARK SCENIC LANDMARK Tavern on the Green Borough of Manhatta Block/Lot: 1111/1

Pursuant to Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, the Landmarks Preservation Commission issued Binding Commission Report 12-2608 (LPC 12-8180) on June 4, 2012, approving a proposal to remove modern additions; construct a new one-story glass addition; modify masonry openings; replace infill, dormers, and roof tiles; create a covered exterior cellar entrance; install fencing, HVAC equipment, utilities related installations, paving, and curbing. Additionally, the Commission issued Miscellaneous/Amendment 14-2286 (LPC 14-0575) on March 28, 2013 to incorporate modifications to the proposal, including adding the installation of a canopy and light fixtures at the building, and Advisory Commission Report 14-2285 (LPC 14-0345) on March 28, 2013, supporting alterations to the site surrounding the building, including installing a bar, planters, fencing, bicycle racks, lighting poles and fixtures, and a stair, with cheek walls and railings; replacing paving; and modifying the existing landscaping.

Subsequently, on February 4, 2013, the Commission received a request to amend the approved work. The proposed amendment consists of replacing a louver, HVAC equipment, and other modern infill at three round-headed window openings at the second floor level of the eastern façade with louvers, instead of windows; omitting muntins at replacement windows at the north and south facades of the historic wings of the building; installing windows, instead of recessed brickwork, at existing masonry openings at the

existing curved addition at the northern portion of the building; increasing the area of reconstruction at the western facade of the building, matching the historic conditions; eliminating the proposed replacement of recessed brickwork with louvers at two locations at the central portion of the western facade; omitting the new roof and posts at an existing stairs, near the western side of the building; installing a heat trace system at the below-grade stairs, adjacent to the western side of the building; installing the new projecting through-the-wall exhaust fan at the southern façade, instead of the western facade; installing two exhaust fans at flat portions of the roofing and flue caps at the existing chimneys at the western portion of the building; replacing an existing sheet metal vent with a copper vent at the southern wing of the building, instead of removing the vent and replacing it with roofing to match the surrounding conditions; installing additional hose bibs at selective locations of plain masonry throughout the exterior facades; and increasing the footprint of the chiller and surrounding fencing near the southern side of the building, as described in written specifications, dated September 3, 2013 and September 4, 2013, and shown in photographs and drawings (pages) 1 through 10, dated revised September 4, 2013 and prepared by Swanke Hayden Connell Architects. Portions of this work, including the majority of the reconstruction of the portion of the western wall to be rebuilt, have already

Accordingly, the Commission reviewed the request and drawings and finds that the eastern facade historically featured replacement louvers as part of its early renovations as a restaurant, as documented by a circa 1940s photograph; that the louvers will be simply designed and mounted flush with its framing, which will be consistent with the design of the historic louvers and not draw undue attention to the installations; that the louvers will maintain a symmetrically organization and be largely concealed by the new addition. thereby further helping them remain a secondary element; that the existing windows, which were used as the basis of the previously proposed window configuration, with muntins, were not original to the building or part of a significant later alteration; that the proposed windows, without muntins, at the historic wings of the building will be in keeping with the style of the significant alterations to the building in the early 20th century; that the proposed windows at the curved addition will match windows, which were originally part of this addition, as documented by a historic condition drawing, in terms of placement, dimensions, materials, configuration, and details; that the proposed windows at the wings and curved addition will be harmonious with the fenestration pattern of the windows throughout the remainder of the building; that the additional reconstruction of the western wall was warranted by its deteriorated conditions; that the portion of the facade being rebuilt will be reconstructed to match its historic condition in terms of placement, dimensions, materials, profiles, details, textures, and finishes; that the elimination of the replacement of existing brickwork with louvers and the previously proposed roof and posts will not diminish any of the proposed restorative work or detract from a significant compositional element of the proposed alterations; that the elimination of the replacement of the brickwork will maintain more historic fabric at this facade; that the heat trace system will be concealed from view and its installation will not alter or eliminate any significant architectural features; that the through-the-wall exhaust vent will be relocated to a portion of the facade which is facing a service area and less visible from public areas of the park; that the installation of the additional exhaust fans and replacement of the existing vent on the roofs will not eliminate any significant historic fabric; that the fans will be installed in the least prominent locations and the vent will replace an existing vent, utilizing its existing roof penetration; that the fans, vent, and flue caps will be simply designed and typical in size, thereby helping them remain secondary elements; that the hose bibs will be small in size, discreet in placement, and installed at plain masonry; that the enlargement of the chiller and fencing will not overwhelm the building or conceal any significant architectural features and will be largely concealed from view from public areas of the park; and that the revised scope of work is in keeping with the intent of the original approval. Based on these findings, Binding Commission Report 12-2608 is hereby amended.

PLEASE NOTE: This Miscellaneous/Amendment is contingent upon the Commission's review and approval of signed and sealed final filing drawings; shop drawings of the replacement windows; and finish samples, all prior to the commencement of work. Once field samples are ready, promptly contact the Commission staff to schedule a site visit.

This amendment is issued on the basis of the building and the site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if actual building or site conditions vary or if original of historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this report, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of the approval. The approved work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this report may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This letter constitutes the report amendment; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Any additional work or further amendments must be reviewed and approved separately. Please direct inquiries regarding this property to Bernadette Artus, Landmarks Preservationist.

Bernadette Artus cc: Caroline Kane Levy, Deputy Director of Preservation/ LPC; Anthony D. Macari/NYC Department of Parks & Recreation; Joseph Le Pique, Chief Historic Prservation Officer/NYC Department of Design and Construction

September 17, 2013

ISSUED TO:

Phyllis Taylor Battery Park City Authority One World Financial Center 200 Liberty Street New York, NY 10281

Re: MISCELLANEOUS/AMENDMENTS

LPC - 14-8784 MISC 14-8500 PIER A INDIVIDUAL LANDMARK Borough of Manhattan Block/Lot: 16/1

Pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City, the Landmarks Preservation Commission issued Binding Commission Report 10-8663 on May 12, 2010, Miscellaneous/Amendments 12-1167 on June 2, 2011, Miscellaneous/Amendments 11-5954 on January 18, 2011, Miscellaneous/Amendments 12-5844 on October 20, 2011, and Miscellaneous/Amendments 13-0310 on March 27, 2012, approving repainting the exterior, the modification of window openings, raising the roof monitors, raising the roofline and replacing the copper roofing system, and the installation of mechanical louvers, all at the subject premises.

Subsequently, on August 26, 2013, the staff received a request to amend the scope of work approved under the original permit.

The proposed amendment consists of work at the north side of the Piershed building roof, including relocating one (1) of the previously approved mechanical bulkheads slightly to the west; and the construction of one (1) additional mechanical bulkhead to match the existing bulkheads, featuring a stack and exhaust fan that rises 5'3" above the bulkhead termination, all finished green (Benjamin Moore HC-136 "Waterbury Green"); and related interior alterations at the second and third floors, including changes to mechanical systems; as shown in a written statement dated August 22, 2013, prepared by Erin Rulli of Higgins Quasebarth & Partners, and drawings A-001.01, A-151.00, A-151.01, A-202.01, and A-202.00 dated March 30, 2012, prepared by Vincent J. Laino, R.A., and M-104.01 through M-106.01 dated August 12, 2013, prepared by Eric Steven Ettinger, P.E.

Accordingly, the staff reviewed this proposal, and finds that given the horizontal scale of the building, relocating one of the bulkheads and the construction of an additional bulkhead will not change the perception of the roofline; and that the proposed work is in keeping with the intent of the original approval. Based on these findings, the Commission determines the work to be appropriate to this Individual Landmark. The work, therefore, is approved, and Binding Commission Report 10-8663 is hereby amended to incorporate the above referenced change.

This amendment is being issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, if the actual building conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of the approval. The approved work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This letter constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Carly Bond.

Carly Bond cc: Jared Knowles, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC

September 17, 2013

ISSUED TO:

Leslie Koch The Trust for Governor's Island 10 South Street, Slip 7 New York, NY 10004

Re: MISCELLANEOUS/AMENDMENTS

LPC - 14-8686 MISC 14-8516 GOVERNOR'S ISLAND HISTORIC DISTRICT GOVERNOR'S ISLAND Borough of Manhattan Block/Lot: 10/1

Pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City, the Landmarks Preservation Commission issued Binding Commission Report 12-9276 on February 21, 2012, approving a proposal to alter pathways, and install lighting, wayfinding signage, and park and landscape features, at the subject premises.

Subsequently, on September 13, 2013, the staff received a request to amend the scope of work approved under the original permit.

The proposed amendment consists of the installation details of the welcome wall signage ("Yankee Welcome Wall") measuring 24' in height at the rear of Building 330, featuring open painted aluminum letters, decorative posts, maps, and changeable banner locations. The welcome wall will be freestanding and braced against the brick façade of Building 330; as shown in a site plan, existing condition photographs, rendering, drawings 3 and 3g dated March 5, 2013, prepared by Design Communications Ltd., and a written statement dated August 20, 2013, prepared by Claire Kelly of the Trust for Governor's Island.

Accordingly, the staff reviewed the proposal, the found that the location, height, and general details of the welcome wall at Building 330 were set forth under the existing approval; that the proposed signage is evocative of the pier structure at the ferry docks; and that the proposed work is in keeping with the intent of the original approval. Based on these findings, the Commission determines the work to be appropriate to the building and to the Governor's Island Historic District. The work, therefore, is approved, and Binding Commission Report 12-9276 is hereby amended to incorporate the above referenced change.

This amendment is being issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, if the actual building conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of the approval. The approved work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This letter constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Carly Bond.

Carly Bond cc: Jared Knowles, Deputy Director of Preservation/LPC

September 23, 2013

ISSUED TO:

Nathan Berman SGN Greenwich Street Owner LLC c/o Metro Loft Management 20 Exchange Place, 11th fl New York, NY 10005

Re: MISCELLANEOUS/AMENDMENTS

LPC - 14-6550 MISC 14-8708 443 GREENWICH STREET HISTORIC DISTRICT TRIBECA NORTH Borough of Manhattan Block/Lot: 222/1

Pursuant to Section 25-306 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, the Landmarks Preservation Commission issued Certificate of No Effect 14-1944 (LPC 13-6788) on March 19, 2013, approving a proposal for restorative work throughout the street, alley and courtyard facades, the vehicular passageways, and rooftop bulkheads, as well as creating a masonry opening and installing a louver at a secondary facade of the subject premises and incorporating the results of a shutter survey.

Subsequently, on July 1, 2013, the Commission received a request to amend the approved work. The proposed amendment consists of changing the shade of the proposed stucco at the brownstone to be resurfaced at the base of the ground floor of the street facades from a shade of brown, matching the shade of the underlying brownstone masonry, to a darker shade of brown, matching the coated finish of the existing historic brownstone at the capitals at the ground floor, and repointing throughout the street facades, instead of repointing selective locations, as well as incorporating detail drawings for the patching work, shop drawings for the cast iron cornices and lead caps, cleaning and finish samples for the shutters, and finish and mortar analyses, as described in written specifications, dated June 7, 2013, June 12, 2013, July 1, 2013, August 20, 2013, and August 22, 2013, and shown in current condition photographs; cornice drawings D.10 through D1.5, dated May 19, 2013 and prepared by Exhibitology; and a patching repair drawing and Lead T cap drawing, both titled drawing 1, dated June 5, 2013 and prepared by Preserv, all submitted by Jennifer Cappeto, on behalf of Higgins, Quasebarth, & Partners, LLC.

Additionally, samples for the pre-cast samples, bluestone & brick & stone patching and masonry pointing samples were approved by the Commission for the work approved by Certificate of No Effect 14-1944 on June 11, 2013 and June 21, 2013; and staff of the Commission conducted a site visit to review the cleaning and painting of the shutters and other work on September 9, 2013.

In reviewing this proposal, the Commission notes that the applicant has documented that test attempts for the removal of the existing coatings at the capitals have been unsuccessful and that the coating is believed to be a mineral stain, which has permanently bonded with the masonry.

Accordingly, the Commission reviewed the request and finds that the brownstone bases and capitals historically had matching finishes and are in seen in close proximity to each other; that the existing coating at the capitals cannot be removed without causing damage to the underlying masonry; that the proposed shade of brown will be in keeping with typical brownstone finishes at buildings of this age, style, and type and will help unify the base of the facades in keeping with the character of the building; that the repointing of the facades is warranted by the deteriorated condition of the existing mortar within the joints; that the proposed mortar will be compatible with the masonry in terms of composition and will match the historic mortar in terms of color, texture, and tooling; that the proposed patching method will utilize establish repair methods and help restore the masonry; that the dimensions, details, and profiles of the cornices, as shown in the shop drawings, will replicate these aspects of the historic cornices; that the placement, size, and simple design of the lead caps will be in keeping with typical installations of this type and will help protect the parapets from damage due to water infiltration; and that the revised scope of work is in keeping with the intent of the original approval. Based on these findings, Certificate of No Effect 14-1944 is hereby

PLEASE NOTE: This permit is contingent on the work being performed when the temperature remains a constant 45 degrees Fahrenheit or above for a 72 hour period from the commencement of the work; and upon the use of hand tools only for the repointing work.

Please be advised that the owners of 443 Greenwich Street have committed themselves to maintaining the building in a sound, first-class condition in perpetuity as a condition of a restrictive declaration entered into pursuant to a previously approved modification of use or bulk. The restrictive declaration is binding on all heirs, assigns and subsequent owners of the building. The declaration requires the owner to hire a qualified preservation professional whose credentials are approved by the LPC to undertake comprehensive inspections every five years of the building's exterior and any portions of the interior which, if not properly maintained, would cause the building to deteriorate. The owner is legally required to expeditiously perform all work identified in the inspection as being necessary to maintain the building in a sound, first-class condition. The replacement of windows, including existing modern replacement windows, which was included in the work under Certificate of No Effect 08-1127 as a portion of the work to bring the building up to a sound, first class condition, is not included in this current permit.

Additionally, please be advised that Notice of Violation 06-0009, issued on September 16, 2005, for "installation of

9POLL

9POLL

9POLL

\$1.0000

\$1.0000

SAMANTHA

JEANETTE

DAY

DAZ

BOARD OF ELECTION POLL WORKERS

windows at Vestry and Greenwich Street facades without permit(s)" remains in force and is not addressed by this permit. This permit is being issued in reliance upon the owner's demonstrated intention to perform work to correct the violation by July 1, 2014, as evidenced by the escrow agreement dated October 19, 2012, between SGN 443 Greenwich St, owner, and Kucker & Bruh, LLP, as escrow agent. Failure to resolve this matter may result in the issuance of a Notice of Violation (NOV) originating from the Environmental Control Board in accordance with Title 63 of the Rules of the City of New York, Section 7-02 (c). Second NOVs require a court appearance and a civil fine may be imposed.

This amendment is issued on the basis of the building and the site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if actual building or site conditions vary or if original of historic building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to amend or revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, in the event that the actual building or site conditions are materially different from those described in the application or during the review process.

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of the approval. The approved work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing or maintaining any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This letter constitutes the permit amendment; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Any additional work or further amendments must be reviewed and approved separately Please direct inquiries regarding this property to Bernadette Artus, Landmarks Preservationist.

Bernadette Artus cc: Caroline Kane Levy, Deputy Director of Preservation/ LPC; Jennifer Cappeto/Higgins, Quasebarth, & Partners, LLC

September 23, 2013

ISSUED TO:

Tim Rowe City of New York Parks & Recreation Olmstead Center Flushing Meadows, Corona Park Flushing, NY 11368

Re: MISCELLANEOUS/AMENDMENTS

LPC - 14-8645 MISC 14-8722 1700 FULTON AVENUE INDIVIDUAL LANDMARK Crotona Play Center Borough of Bronx Block/Lot: 2941/1

Pursuant to Sections 3020 and 854 (h) of the New York City Charter and Section 25-318 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York, which require a report from the Landmarks Preservation Commission for certain plans for the construction, reconstruction, alteration, or demolition of any improvement or proposed improvement which is owned by the City, the Landmarks Preservation Commission issued Binding Commission Report 14-7443 (LPC 147035) on August 14, 2013, approving a proposal for alterations to the former diving pool at the subject premises.

Subsequently, on September 4, 2013, the staff received a request to amend the scope of work approved under the original permit.

The proposed amendment consists of modifying the approved fence height from three feet to four feet and modifying the double-leaf gates to single leaf gates; as shown and described in a transmittal dated September 4, 2013 and a drawing labeled L-605, dated August 29, 2013, prepared by Tim Rowe.

Accordingly, the staff reviewed the drawings and found that proposal previously approved by the Commission has been maintained. Based on these findings, the Commission determines the work to be appropriate to this Individual Landmark. The work, therefore, is approved, and Binding Commission Report 14-7443 is hereby amended.

This amendment is being issued on the basis of the building and site conditions described in the application and disclosed during the review process. By accepting this permit, the applicant agrees to notify the Commission if the actual building or site conditions vary or if original building fabric is discovered. The Commission reserves the right to revoke this permit, upon written notice to the applicant, if the actual building conditions are materially different from those described in the application or disclosed during the review

All approved drawings are marked approved by the Commission with a perforated seal indicating the date of the approval. The approved work is limited to what is contained in the perforated documents. Other work or amendments to this filing must be reviewed and approved separately. The applicant is hereby put on notice that performing any work not explicitly authorized by this permit may make the applicant liable for criminal and/or civil penalties, including imprisonment and fines. This letter constitutes the permit; a copy must be prominently displayed at the site while work is in progress. Please direct inquiries to Carly Bond.

cc: Sarah Carroll, Director of Preservation/LPC

● 028

CHANGES IN PERSONNEL

FOR PERIOD ENDING 09/13/13 TITLE ACTION APPOINTED NAME NUM SALARY PROV EFF DATE CAZARES GUADALUP M 9POLL \$1.0000 CECIL APPOINTED 01/01/13 RASHAD C 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED 01/01/13 CEN YES ь CERISIER SHIAN 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 CHAMPION **JAMES** 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 CHAPMAN-BAUER EMILY 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED 01/01/13 YES CHARLES LINDA 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 CHARLES MARIE G 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 CHEN BILLY 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 CHEN \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL NEVIN 01/01/13 CHEN 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES CHERRY \$1.0000 APPOINTED 01/01/13 NICOLE 9POLL YES CHERRY NICOLE \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL 01/01/13 CHIANG KEVIN 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES HELEN \$1.0000 APPOINTED 01/01/13 CHIN 9POLL YES CHIPORUKHA NADEZHDA 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 CHIRADIYIL 01/01/13 JOSEPH 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES CHOUDHURY SHAHRAKI A 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED 01/01/13 YES CHOWDHURY MDABRAR \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL 01/01/13 CHOWDHURY SABEET 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES CHRISTENSON 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED 01/01/13 GUS YES JESSICA \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 CINTRON 9POLL CLAMPMAN GEORGE В 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 COKER LEE 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 COLLIER MARTIN 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 01/01/13 COLLYMORE ANN 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES LUIS APPOINTED 01/01/13 COLON 9POLL \$1.0000 YES TIMOTHY APPOINTED COLON 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 01/01/13 COMMITANTE LISA 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES CONTENT DIMITRI 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 APPOINTED CONYERS DANIEL 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 JOHNETTE D APPOINTED 01/01/13 9POLL \$1.0000 YES COOK WILLIE \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 COOK 9POLL APPOINTED COOKE CYNTHIA 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 LAKISHA APPOINTED 01/01/13 CORBETT 9POLL \$1.0000 YES CORNIN JEAN \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL COSTELLO ROBERT 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 COVINGTON GENNINE 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 COVINGTON TIFFANY S \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL APPOINTED COWAN HAROLD 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 COX LAKISHA APPOINTED 01/01/13 9POLL \$1.0000 YES CRAWFORD ETHEL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL APPOINTED CRAWFORD FARAH 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 CRAWFORD APPOINTED 01/01/13 LISA 9POLL \$1.0000 YES CREDLE KAYLA 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 APPOINTED CRITE LATISHA 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 ESSENCE APPOINTED 01/01/13 CROCKETT 9POLL \$1.0000 YES CROOM WENDY \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL APPOINTED CRUZ AMPARO 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 APPOINTED CRUZ MELISSA 01/01/13 9POLL \$1.0000 YES LINDA CURTO \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL DADE CARL 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 APPOINTED DARIEN DAWN 9POLL \$1.0000 YES 01/01/13 DAVID EDWARD Е \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 9POLL DAVILA **JENNIFER** 9POLL \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13 APPOINTED 01/01/13 DAVIS DEREK 9POLL \$1.0000 YES DAVIS PATRICIA \$1.0000 APPOINTED YES 01/01/13

APPOINTED

APPOINTED

YES

YES

01/01/13

01/01/13

DE LA CRUZ	ARGENIS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DE LA CRUZ	PAOLA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DE LOS SANTOS F	CYNTHIA	Y	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DEDOMENICO	RICHARD		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DEER	KATHLYN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DEHIGAMA	KUMUDU	S	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DEHIGAMA	VIHANGA	D	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DEJESUS	ROBERT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DELACRUZ VARGAS	BARBARA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DELGARDIO JR	JOSEPH	V	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DELUCCIA	MARIA	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DEMIR DEPAOLIS	ANNETTE	D M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
	ALYSSA	M F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000		YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
DEROUSSELLE DESROSIERS	DONELLA GENESE	r	9POLL		APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	
DEVITO	NICOLE	N	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
DEVIVO	MARIO	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DIALLO	MAMADOU		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DIBENEDETTO	STEPHEN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DIGGS-IRONS	JONATHON	K	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DING	JIE XIAN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DOMINGA	MONTERO		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DOMINGUEZ	ERENIO		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DONOVAN	JAY	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DORE	WASCAR	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DOTTIN	ANIKA	s	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DOVER	MALAYSIA	В	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DOWNER	PETER		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DRAKE	MATTHEW	D	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DREW	BIANCA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DUGAN	ATHENA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DUKE	DEBORAH	R	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DUNCAN	ANGELA	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DUNCAN	UNIQUE-W		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DURAN PICHARDO	DAIANA	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
DURAN PICHARDO	YINCELY	D	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
EATMAN	RAMONITA	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
EDMINSTER			9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
EDWARDS	BERNARD	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
EDWARDS	PATRICE	ъ	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
EDWARDS EKPE	SHAWANNA ADA	0	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13
EKPE SR	CHARLES	0	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
ELLIS	MARGARET		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
ELLIS	MILTON	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
EPSHTEYN	NATALIYA	•	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
ESPINAL	ALBA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
ESPINAL	LENNY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
ESQUILIN	WAYMAN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
EVANS	BRITTANY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FEHLING	GEORGE	W	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FELIPA	ESPINO		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FENG	SANDY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FERGUSON	ERNEST		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FERMIN	JON	С	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FIGUEROA	MIGUEL	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FIGUEROA	SYLVIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FIGUEROA	YOLANDA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FLORENTINO	JENNY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FLORES	JESSICA	M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FLORES	MIGUEL	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FLOURNEY	PHYLLIS	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FLOWERS	JONATHAN	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FORBES	ONEIL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FRANCIS	AKEEMA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FRANCO	ASHLEY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FRANKLIN	CINETHA	s	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
FRASER FRATANTONI	RICHARD SUZANNE		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PANIANIUNI	POTUNE		75000	\$1.0000	VLLOTHIED.	150	01/01/13

FRAZER FRAZIER	DANIEL SARA R	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	JONES JONES	JOSEPH JULIA A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
FRAZIER FREDERICK	TIFFANY L DANIEL W	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	JONES JONES	KALIS S MARCEL J	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
FREEMAN	VICTORIA	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	JONES	MAYA S SHARIF	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
FRISCIA FUNG	ROSS STEPHENI	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	JONES JONES-SANTIAGO	PATRICIA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
GALVEZ GAO	ERIKA V PEI L		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	JOSEPH JOSEPH	CRAIG T ROSA Z	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GARAY GARCIA	THERESA ALESSAND	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	JOSMA JOYNER	DORIA J CHRISTOP R	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GARCIA GARCIA	ANNETTE EDILIO	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KACHIKWU KADARNAUTH	CHUKWUDI P JUSTIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GARCIA GARCIA	JENNIFER LAURA B	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KADILLIU KAFADER	REDION GEORGE E	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GARCIA GASHI	RAMON LUAN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KAPS KATSNELSON	CELICIA JOSEPH P	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GHATAK	KAZAL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13	KAUFMAN	SARA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13
GILESPIE GILL	JACQUELI SHARONDA D	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KAWALICK KEARNEY	DEBRA MEGAN M	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GIRI GJELI	SHER B ARTENIDA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KELLEY KELLY	DONOVAN J ZENA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GLASGOW GLENN	VANESSA JAMAR E	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KEZELE KHAN	LINDA KEVI	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GOFF GOLDBLUM	MARY LINDA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KHAZANOVA KIM	MARINA KY J	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GOMEZ GOMEZ	JENNIFER KEVIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KIM KIRANJEET	MYUNGHEE KAUR	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GONZALEZ GOVANTES	LUIS M SERETTA L	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KIRBY	EBONY D MARGARET R	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GRAY	YUSEFF A		\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	KOERBER KOGER	KHASHIM T	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
GRAZETTE GREAVES	IVAN V MAUREEN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KOLIEMENIE	ANNA K PHILIP	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GRECAY GREEN	JUDITH M SINCERE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	KORN KUANG	CORRINNE GAN CHEN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GREEN GREENE	STACEY CASSANDR	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LACEY LALLAVE	TANGIA MARITZA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GRINDERY GRISSETT	SVETLANA GRACE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LAPREASE LARA	CHRISTIN M CELINA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GUIDA GUIDO	ANTHONY M VIRGINIA A		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LAURENCEAU LAZALA	JACQUELI DINORAH	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GUILLEN	WENDY M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	LEBLANC	CAMRON L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
GULKO GUPIT	ELENA LEONIDA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LECLER LEE	CHRISTIA BO RA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GUTIERREZ GUTIERREZ	ALEXANDR KRYSTAL S	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEE	HOPE R HYUN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GUZALLIS GUZMAN	MARGARET CLAUDIO	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEE LEE	JAMOR LINA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
GUZMAN GUZMAN	NELLY OMAR	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEE LEE	MING H SHARYN		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HAIRSTON HALDAR	SHIRLEY SMRITI	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEE LEE	SHENIKWA SUSAN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HALL HAMILTON	ERICA A	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEE LEI	WILSON KAFAI	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HAMILTON HAMMOND	TANESHA T DELORES		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEIBOWITZ LEITE	BRUCE ERIC I	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HAMPTON	BARSHEEN J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	LEON	YESSICA D	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
HANAVER HANCOCK	JOHN LUK C	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LESLIE LESTER	RONALD MONTGOME	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HANLEY JR HARRELL	ALPHEUS M SHAQUASH S		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LESTER LETRIZ	SHANELL T KATHERIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HARRIS HARRIS	DORIS EBONY	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEVICKY LEWIS	GABRIEL DONEQUA J	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HARRIS HARRIS	JERYL MICHAEL J	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEWIS LEWIS	JAMES E TRAVIS A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HARRISON HARRISON	DOMINIQU PIA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LEWIS LI	TREVOR A		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HARRISON	SHERRY-A K	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	LIEB	PHUONG	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
HASAN HAYNES	ABU S	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LIGON LIGON	DELORES H	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HAYNES HAYNES	DARRYL D KEITH	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LIN LIN	DAYUAN JIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HAYNES HAZEL	RAVENN JAMAL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LIN LINDO	YUANJING JANNELL L	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HENRY HERCULES	RACHEAL E VALARIE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LINGLEY LIPETS	BONNIE G FAINA F	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HERMAN HERNANDEZ	EBONY S FLORA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LITTLE LITTLE	COREY D MAXWELL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HERNANDEZ HERRERA	YURILKA MARILYN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LIU LLANO	SHILEY CHASTERI A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HESTER	TOMMY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	LOPEZ	ERICA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
HEURTELOU HIDALGO	ASHLEY JESUS	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LOPEZ LORA	LERUBI C DEMIS	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HILL HILL	ARTHUR K CAROL A		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LOWRY LU	CHERYL M YUE	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HILL HINSON	RICHARD S DEMETRIU	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LUCERO LUNA	YESSENIA I JAMIE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HITE HOE	JOSEPH A WENDY	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	LUNFORD MAGLOIRE	EBONY T CLIFFORD	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HOLIDIS-LAMBRAK HOLTJE	ELPIDA ALBERT	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MAISANET MALDONADO	AMBER A STEVE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HONG HOOK	JUNG HO TIARRA C	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MALDONADO VERA MALIK	DANIEL JAIME	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HOOKS	GEORGIA D	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13	MALONEY	BRIAN J STEPHEN		\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HOSSAIN	MOHAMMED B		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MANKONG MAPP	WILLIAM B	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
HOSSIN HOUSE	ASHRAFUL APRIL	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MARIAM MARKMAN	THANITUN U SUSAN K	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HSIAO HUA	LIEN TUN EMILY	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	DECEASED APPOINTED	YES YES	05/27/13 01/01/13	MARKS MARLIN	ROSHANNE I SIMONIA E	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HUANG HUANG	CHIUNG Y MING J		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MARRA MARRERA	JOHN J AMNERYS	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HUANG HUBBARD	SAVANNAH CYNTHIA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	09/05/13 01/01/13	MARS MARTE	DEBORAH PENELOPE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HUBBARD HURTARTE	MALCOLM M		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MARTINEZ MARTINEZ	ARIANA DORIS	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
HUTTON IBANEZ	ADAM F JANE		\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13 01/01/13	MARTINEZ MARTINEZ MARTINEZ	MARIA MIGDALIA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13 01/01/13
ILANDARI	CHANDRIK	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	MARTINEZ	SARA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
IMES IRIZORRY-ZARAZA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MARTINEZ CORZO MASHUROVA	MARIA A NINA	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
ISGRO ISLAM	PAULA MAHFUZUL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MASON MASON JR	TEAJAN B HAKEEM D	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
ISLAR JACKSON	KISIA A DARRYL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MATOS MATTHEWS	LANDER MARK	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JACKSON JACOBS	TIANA C	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MATTINGLY MAYCOCK	TRICIA ARTURO	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JAHAN JALLOH	ISRAT ELHADJ A	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MCCALLUM MCCASKILLBOUR	SHANEEN JOELL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JALLOH JAMES-LEO	MOHAMED JULIET S	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MCCOY MCFADDEN	BRANDI AUDREY V	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JASHARI	LIRIDONA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	MCGETTIGAN	JEANNNE M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
JEAN BAPTISTE JEAN-BAPTISTE	RITCHY J FABRICE	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MCHUTCHINSON MCKINNON	TENEISHA NICOLE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JEAN-BAPTISTE JEAN-NOEL	MARVIN ADGER	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED RESIGNED	YES YES	01/01/13 08/28/13	MCKNIGHT MCLAUGHLIN	HOWARD J DOROTHY A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JEMINEZ JIMENEZ-SANCHEZ	CORY J JOSE M		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MCLAUGHLIN MCLOUGHLIN	ROSA L STEVEN G	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JOCOB JOEL	MONIQUE M CARRONZA A	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MCMANUS MCMILLAN	KERI IRA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JOHN JOHNS	AGATHA S MARSHA V	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MCMILLIAN MCNEIL	THOMAS L DUANE W	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JOHNSON JOHNSON	JANET B NAILAH		\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13 01/01/13	MCNEIL MCPHAIL	VANDA M TEHILLAH C	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13 01/01/13
JOHNSON	PATRICIA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	MEGGETT	JAMEEL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
JOHNSON JOHNSON	RHONDA ROBERT A		\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MEJIAJUAN MELENDEZ	JAZMIN ANDRES	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JOKHAKAR JOLLY	MAYABEN R NATALIA A	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	MELENDEZ MELENDEZ	EUGENO MARITZA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
JONATHAN	NELSON	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	MENA	CRYSTAL M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13

MERCADO	KEVIN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	PORTER	ESSENCE A 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MERCADO	MARIA I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	PORTER	NATAVIA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MERRITT MILLER	TREVOR A DAWNE C	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	PORTER	RANAE 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MILLER	HAVELOCK W	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	POWELL POWELL	AMANDA M 9POLL BRITTANY 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13
MILLER	LOUIS S	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	PRAYOR	JESAIAH J 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
MILLER MILLS	RITZA N KIPSIE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	PREMUS	ROBERT T 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MITCHELL	ALICIA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	PROCTOR	ENA S 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MITCHELL	LOLA R	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	PUENTE	DAHLIA E 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MODESTE MODESTE	CRYSTAL K JILLIAN J	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	PUSACHEV QUADRI	ALEXANDE 9POLL SOFIA 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
MONTAG	KEVIN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	QUADRI	SYEDA M 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MONTANO	AURA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	QUESADA	VICTOR 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MONTERO	NURIS	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RACHANSKY	MATTHEW B 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MONTGOMERY MOODY	TAQUANA A FAUTASIA S	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13	RAHMAN	SHADAQUR 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MOODY	JOHNNIE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	RAMNARAIN RAMOS	ARLENE 9POLL MINVERA 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
MOORE	PINKY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RAMOS	REINALDO L 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MORALE	FRANK	8POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	08/04/13	RAMOUTAR	EULALIE 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MORALES	DAVID	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RASHID	SABIHA N 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MORALES MORALES	RICHARD VICTOR	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	RAY	RASHIDA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MORENO	GABRIELA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	REEVES REGAN	KELVIN 9POLL WILLIAM E 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
MORGAN	PATSY L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	REMY	CLARK 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MORILLO	CAROLYN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RENO	KAREN 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MORRILL	TUCKER G	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	REY	MARK 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MORTON III MOZNU	PAUL NASRIN	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	REYES	FRANCISC 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MUHAMMAD		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RICH RICHARD	ILENE 9POLL ALEXANDR 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
MULVIHILL	JEANA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RICHARDS	DALLAS J 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/29/13
MUMIN	MARYAM S	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RICHMAN	IRIS 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MUNGUIA MUNOZ	BRIAN O AILEEN E	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13	RIDDICK	CYNTHIA C 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MUNROE	AILEEN E	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/12	RING RIVELES	MARLENE R 9POLL DEBRA S 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
MURILLO	NANCY F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/12	RIVERA	JUAN A 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
MURRELL	JOYELL M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROA	LINNA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NAHMIAS	LAURA E	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROBBINS	THELMA L 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NALLS NAZLI	UQUAJAH T NAGINA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	ROBBINS-CUBAS	SHAKTI A 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NEAL	VANESSA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROBERT-MARTIN ROBERTSON	KRISTIN A 9POLL SEAN 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
NEAL-HACKER	TAMIKA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROBINSON	FATIMA K 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NEGRON JR	MIGUEL A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROBINSON	LANIER 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NELSON NELSON	LISA M	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROCKEFELLER	RAISSA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NELSON NESBETH	VICTORIA CLAUDETT V	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	RODRIGUEZ RODRIGUEZ	CHRISTIA 9POLL DAIRA 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
NGOUAN	ACKAH P	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RODRIGUEZ	EDDY 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NGUYEN	JAMES M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RODRIGUEZ	NOEL R 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NIBLACK	KWAN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RODRIGUEZ	SAMANTHA C 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NICOLAS NIEDERHOFFER	ESPINO KATHIE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	RODRIGUEZ ROGERS	STEPHANY 9POLL SHANELLE B 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
NISBET	ANTHONY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROMAIN	JENAYA L 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NISSEN	GREGORY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROMANELLI	AMELIA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NNAMBUCHU		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROMANO	NICOLE 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NOREEN	SAIQA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROMANOFF ROMNEY	JACKLYN 9POLL JOSE A 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
NORRIS NUNEZ	KENNETH L GRISMELD	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	RONEY	JORDANY 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NUNEZ	LISENIA J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROSADO	MICHAELA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NURIT	MARCUS	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROSADO	WONDRA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
NZIENGUI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROSAIRO ROSARIO	CHRISTOP A 9POLL ANGIE J 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
O'GRADY O'NEAL	ANDREW EBONY N	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	ROSARIO	BELKYS 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
OBRIEN	EARL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROSARIO-DIAZ	FRANCISC S 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
OCONNELL	DANIEL J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	ROSENBLUM	FAY 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
OGUTU	MARK O	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	RUIZ RUSSELL	ERIKA 9POLL MICHAEL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
OKPALA OO	CHINAZO G NWE	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	RYTHER	CHRISTIN C 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
ORTIZ		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SAINTLOUIS	ROBERTA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
OSINAIKE	YUSUFF	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SAKIB	RIFAT 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
OVERBEY	RICHARD	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SALANDY	MARILYN 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
OVERBY	MICHAEL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SAMARO SAN INOCENCIO	CHANDRA 9POLL ASHLEEN 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
OWENS OYANDO	VERA DOGEL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SANDERS	DONNA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PABON	MARTA E	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SANO-ASH	RUTH A 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PADILLA	INGRID C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SANTANA	GISELE 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PAGAN	ANGEL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SANTANA SANTANA	NICHOLAS B 9POLL RAFAEL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PAGE PALAMINO	BARKISHA F NICHOLAS	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SANTARIELLO	ANN 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PALMER	TIANA T	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	08/29/13	SANTIAGO	ELIZABET 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PARK	MARY ANN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SANTIAGO	SARAI 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PARKS	SARA E	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SANTIGATE SANTOS	TORINA 9POLL JAYE ANN 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PASHA	IQRA T SANA T	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SANTOS	JENNIFER 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PASHA PATERSON	SANA T ANNE M	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SAPP	HELEN 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PATRICK	DANIEL	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SARAYI	OLAYINKA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PATROUSHKA	SIMON L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SARK SARKAR	ERNEST R 9POLL TAPU R 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PAULINO PAULINO	DORALIZA MARIA S	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SASSO	NICOLE R 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PEERZADA	MARIA S NATASHA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SAUNDERS	ALANA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PEGUERO	JAEMMY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SAXON	DONTAYE J 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PENA	ADRIAN R	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SCHER SCHREINER	JULIAN M 9POLL MICHAEL J 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PENA PENA	DANIEL MIGUEL	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SCHREINER	ROBIN K 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PENA PENN	MIGUEL ADAM	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SCUDDER	JASMINE M 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PENN	KENNETH	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SEABROOK	ETHEL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PERALTA	KELVIN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SEALY-FRASER SEIDMAN	NATASHA 9POLL MARIE 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PERDOMO	YARENIS	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SEIDMAN SELTZER	EDWARD 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PEREIRA PERERA	JACQUELI SURANGA M	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13	SHALTO	SHERICA S 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PEREZ		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SHARIF	AKLIMA 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PEREZ	JORGE	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SHAW SHEAD	KHALIK J 9POLL EDDIE L 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PERKINS	TRISTINA J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SHEAD	EDDIE L 9POLL LUCILLE 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13
PERRIELLO PERRY	NICK DEVERRAH	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SHEIKH	SHAH 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PERRY	JENNIFER M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SHERRY	ANNMARIE R 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PERRY	KATRINA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SHIKDER	MOHAMMED S 9POLL HA NYEUL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PERRY	SHARAY	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SHIN SHIRLEY	HA NYEUL 9POLL FELICIA C 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13
PETRIC PETRIC	FRANCIS A ROMEO M	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SHROPSHIRE	TIJUANA S 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PETRUS	JULIE	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SIDDONS	CHRISTIA B 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PETTERSEN	CORRINE T	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SIEBENALER	ALBERT M 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PETTIGREW	MONIQUE M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SILVA SIMMONS	LATIESSE 9POLL SHARON A 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PHILLIPS PIERCE	JOHN SABRINA	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SIMMONS	TYMELLE D 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PIERCE	VERONICA	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SIMON	NEDENE 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PILARTE	ALESSAND	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SIMPSON	IVY 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PILGRIM	SUZANNE M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SIMS SINGH	NEKEISHA L 9POLL DIPSHIKH 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
PILLOT	DEIDRA J	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SINGLETON	SHAUN L 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PINCKNEY PIZARRO	LETITIA N JOSHUA E	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SLATER	TIQUAN M 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PLACIDO	MARITZA C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SMALLS	CHIMERE 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
PLASENCIA	LYSETTE N	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13	SMITH SMITH	CHADEIC S 9POLL CORY 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
POLANCO POLANCO	ESMIRNA MIGUEL A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13	SMITH	DENISE C 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
POLANCO POOLE	MIGUEL A SILVANIA B	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13	SMITH	JOHN 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
							SMITH	KEIRRA I 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13

MONDAY, O	СТОВЕР	₹ 2	8, 2013			T	THE CIT
SMITH	TAWANA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
SMITH	VICTOR	M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
SMITH SNELL	WAKINA CHENEQUA	L	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
SOLAIMAN	MOHAMMAD		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
SOLIS SOLOMON	MARICELA CHRISTOP	M	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
SOTERO SOTO	YANITZA JANET	A A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
SOTO	KARINA	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
SPANN SPEIGHT	OMAR JUDY	С	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
SPENCER	MICHELLE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
SPIVER ST. HILAIRE	DAVID JEENA	D A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
STANZIONE	RILEY	M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
STATON STECHER	JALEESA JOANN		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
STEINBACH	KATHERIN	M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
STEINBACH STEPHENS	THOMAS ANTHONY		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
STEPHENS	KIMALI	M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
STEVENSON STEWART-ROBINSO	MAEOLA PATRICIA	E	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
STOBY	LIRIS	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
STOKELY STONE	SAVANNA MARCIA	D J	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
STORCH	TIMOTHY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
STRAUS STRONG	JONATHAN KIMBERLY	s	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
SULLIVAN	KYLE	F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
SULTANA SUSCA	SAFYA SAMANTHA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
SUSIE	MAYERS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
SUTHERLAND TAHIR	SANTANA RAJA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TALUKDER	DOLON		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TAM TANNUZI	PAUL HOWARD	s	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TARDY	ANTOINET	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TATE TATUM	MARY MARVINA	В	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TAUGHER	SUZANNE	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TEAL TEJERA	MARGUERI BRIANNA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TENRYK	SCOTT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TERRY THOMAS	ERMA	R	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
THOMAS	CINNAMON DANIELLE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
THOMAS THOMAS	DEBORAH	A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
THOMAS	MARY ROSA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
THOMAS	TENICIA	N A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
THOMPSON TIRELLI	NICOLE DORIS	A	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TIRONE	KAREN SHEILA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TOLEDO TONIESHA	WATSON	м	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TORRE	CHRISTIA	_	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TORREGGIANI TORRES	LARRY MARIA	P	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TORREZ	JARISSA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TOSCANO TRAN	GIOVANNI STEPHANI	А	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TRIANA	ALFAUEY		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TRUESDALE TRUSTY	SYLVESTE LAKISHA	м	9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TSE TSYBULEVSKAYA	CHI SING YEVA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
TUCCIO	SARA	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
TYLER JR UPSHER	KELVIN CHERRILY		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
URBINA	DELFINO	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
URBONAS URENA	STEPHANI VANESSA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
URQUILLA	ARNOLDO		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
VALDEZ VALDMAN	ARICA ATLYNKUL		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
VALENTIN	ANDREA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
VALERA VALERE	NATALIE KARL	A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
VANCE	MACK		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
VARCIE VARGAS	SAIMA LISSETTE	м	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
VARGAS	SANDRA	I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
VASSELL-COX VELEZ	ADIEL-MI EDWIN	С	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
VELEZ	HECTOR		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
VERAS VIDAS	WENCY MARTINA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
VILLANUEVA	BONNIE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
VILLEYA VIRIDANA	VENICE CASTELAN		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
VOGLEZON	OSWALD	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WALLACE WALLACE	MEGAN PORTIA	М	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WALTERS WANG	KAYSHLA CECIL	J	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WANG	CHRISTIN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WANG WANG	LIANG FE YAWEI		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WANG WASHINGTON	ZHEN KRISTINA	0	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WASHINGTON	MICHELLE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WATSON WATSON-HALL	SHARMAIN JOAN	R	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WEINGARTEN	JANET		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WELCH	JOSEPH CHRISTOP	Т	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WELLS WELLS	DANIELLE MICOLLET	N	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WHATTS	HIRAM	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WHINFIELD WHITE	JEWEL EDWARD	A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WHITE WHITE	MARJORIE ROBERT		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WILKINSON	ERIC	x	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WILLIAMS WILLIAMS	ALEXIA BOVEL	0	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WILLIAMS WILLIAMS	CANDICE DARYL	E	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WILLIAMS	KENNETH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WILLIAMS WILLIAMS	MONEKA		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WILLIAMS WILLIAMS	SANDRA SANDRA	A	9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
WILLIAMS WILLIAMS	SHAKIRA SHERYL		9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13 01/01/13
"THUTAMO	TINGELL		חחהפי	9T.0000	WELOTHIED.	TED	01/01/13

WILLIAMS JR	RONALD	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WILLIAMS-SEABRO		N	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WILSON	BEVERLEY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WILSON	CLORINDA	Α	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WILSON	MIROSLAV	Α	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WINGFIELD	DEBRA	R	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WINTERS	JASON		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WOMBLE-POLITE	DONNELL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WONG	SIKEI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WOODS	TASHELLE	G	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
WOOTEN	ADA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/13
XIONG	SHUYI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	09/05/13

● 029

LATE NOTICES

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

■ JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE OF A JOINT PUBLIC HEARING of the Franchise and Concession Review Committee and the New York City Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to be held on Tuesday, November 12, 2013 at 22 Reade Street, Borough of Manhattan, commencing at 2:30 P M relative to:

INTENT TO AWARD as a concession a sole source license agreement (Agreement) with Brooklyn Union Gas Company d/b/a National Grid, N.Y. (Licensee) for residual digester gas recovery operations at the Newtown Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant through the use of the National Grid Purification System (System), for one twenty year term.

After the 5th year of the concession, and every year thereafter, Licensee shall pay to the City one-half of any accumulated Surplus produced by the System (as defined in the Agreement). At the end of the term, the parties will reconcile any accumulated deficits and Surpluses.

LOCATION: A draft copy of the Agreement may be reviewed or obtained at no cost, commencing on Thursday October 31, 2013 through Tuesday November 12, 2013, between the hours of 9:30 A.M. - 12:00 P.M. and from 1:00 P.M. - 4:00 P.M., excluding weekends and holidays at the DEP offices, located at 59-17 Junction Blvd., 17th floor, Bid Room, New York, NV 11373

Individuals requesting Sign Language Interpreters should contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services, Public Hearings Unit, 253 Broadway, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10007, (212) 788-7490, no later than SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING.

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115

● o28

PARKS AND RECREATION

■ JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE OF A JOINT PUBLIC HEARING of the Franchise and Concession Review Committee and the New York City Department of Parks and Recreation to be held on Tuesday, November 12, 2013 at 22 Reade Street, Borough of Manhattan, commencing at 2:30 P.M. relative to:

INTENT TO AWARD as a concession the operation and maintenance of the Prospect Park Lakeside Center at Prospect Park, Brooklyn ("Licensed Premises"), for a potential seventeen (17) year term, to the Prospect Park Alliance ("PPA"). Compensation to the City will be as follows: for each operating year, PPA shall pay to the City a license fee consisting of the guaranteed annual fee (Year 1: \$0; Year 2: \$100,000; Year 3: \$101,000; Year 4: \$102,010; Year 5: \$103,030; Year 6: \$104,060; Year 7: \$105,101; Year 8: \$106,152; Year 9: \$107,214; Year 10: \$108,286; Year 11: \$109,369; Year 12: \$110,462; Year 13: \$111,567; Year 14: \$112,683; Year 15: \$113,809; Year 16: \$114,947; Year 17: \$116,097).

A draft copy of the agreement may be reviewed or obtained at no cost, commencing Friday, November 1, 2013, through Tuesday, November 12, 2013, between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., excluding weekends and holidays at the NYC Department of Parks and Recreation, located at 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 313, New York, NY 10065.

Individuals requesting Sign Language Interpreters should contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services, Public Hearings Unit, 253 Broadway, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10007, (212) 788-7490, no later than SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115

☞ o28

ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Services (Other Than Human Services)

DAY CARE COUNCIL – Sole Source – Available only from a single source - PIN# 06814S0001 – DUE 11-04-13 AT 2:00 P.M. – The Administration for Children's Services (ACS) contracts with over 115 not-for-profit organizations to operate childcare programs and provide services in 290 locations throughout the five boroughs. These organizations are the employers of over 6000 child care professionals and support staff.

The Day Care Council of New York Inc. ("The Council") has been designated by the Child Care Not-for-Profit providers represented by District Council 1707/Local 205 of AFSCME and The Council of Supervisors and Administrators (CSA) to serve as their representative in all collective bargaining issues negotiations and agreements. Additionally, The Council provides all grievance-mediation services, recruitment and personnel assistance. Training and technical assistance is also provided to ensure consistency and efficiency throughout the childcare community.

ACS cannot perform these negotiations with the unions on behalf of the contracted agencies and their staffs, because ACS is not the employer. However, City funding is used to adjudicate any grievances, fund collective bargaining issues and other negotiations affecting contracts with our child care vendors. It is therefore, advantageous to the City to provide funding to The Council to advocate for ACS' not-for-profit agencies. Additionally, based upon correspondence from the City of New York's Office of Labor Relations (OLR) pertaining to lawsuits brought by unions against the City claiming the City was a "joint employer" with contract vendor agencies; the City prevailed in these cases because it was not a signatory to collective bargaining agreements between these unions and the vendor agencies and it did not directly provide wages or benefits to these employees. The Council's contract will eliminate the appearance that the City is a joint employer of the not-for-profit employees.

The Council's unique expertise, service and configuration are the primary basis for this sole source method determination. It conforms to the first condition for a sole source procurement, that there be only one source for the required service pursuant to Section 3-05 of the PPB rules.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Administration for Children's Services, Office of Procurement, 150 William Street, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10038. Sherene Hassen (212) 341-3443; sherene.hassen@dfa.state.ny.us

READER'S GUIDE

The City Record (CR) is published each business day and includes notices of proposed New York City procurement actions, contract awards, and other procurement-related information. Solicitation notices for most procurements valued at or above \$100,000 for information technology and for construction and construction related services, above \$50,000 for other services, and above \$25,000 for other goods are published for at least one day. Other types of procurements, such as sole source, require notice in The City Record for five consecutive days. Unless otherwise specified, the agencies and offices listed are open for business Monday through Friday from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., except on legal holidays.

NOTICE TO ALL NEW YORK CITY CONTRACTORS

The New York State Constitution ensures that all laborers, workers or mechanics employed by a contractor or subcontractor doing public work are to be paid the same wage rate that prevails in the trade where the public work is being done. Additionally, New York State Labor Law §§ 220 and 230 provide that a contractor or subcontractor doing public work in construction or building service must pay its employees no less than the prevailing wage. Section 6-109 (the Living Wage Law) of the New York City Administrative Code also provides for a "living wage", as well as prevailing wage, to be paid to workers employed by City contractors in certain occupations. The Comptroller of the City of New York is mandated to enforce prevailing wage. Contact the NYC Comptroller's Office at www.comptroller.nyc.gov, and click on Prevailing Wage Schedules to view rates.

CONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION SERVICES OR CONSTRUCTION-RELATED SERVICES

The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed to the City's prestige as a global destination.

VENDOR ENROLLMENT APPLICATION

New York City procures approximately \$17 billion worth of goods, services, construction and construction-related services every year. The NYC Procurement Policy Board Rules require that agencies primarily solicit from established mailing lists called bidder/proposer lists. Registration for these lists is free of charge. To register for these lists, prospective suppliers should fill out and submit the NYC-FMS Vendor Enrollment application, which can be found online at www.nyc.gov/selltonyc. To request a paper copy of the application, or if you are uncertain whether you have already submitted an application, call the Vendor Enrollment Center at (212) 857-1680.

SELLING TO GOVERNMENT TRAINING WORKSHOP

New and experienced vendors are encouraged to register for a free training course on how to do business with New York City. "Selling to Government" workshops are conducted by the Department of Small Business Services at 110 William Street, New York, NY 10038, Sessions are convened on the second Tuesday of each month from 10:00A.M. to 12:00 P.M. For more information, and to register, call (212) 618-8845 or visit www.nyc.gov/html/sbs/nycbiz and click on Summary of Services, followed by Selling to Government.

PRE-QUALIFIED LISTS

New York City procurement policy permits agencies to develop and solicit from pre-qualified lists of vendors, under prescribed circumstances. When an agency decides to develop a pre-qualified list, criteria for pre-qualification must be clearly explained in the solicitation and notice of the opportunity to pre-qualify for that solicitation must be published in at least five issues of the CR. Information and qualification questionnaires for inclusion on such lists may be obtained directly from the Agency Chief Contracting Officer at each agency (see Vendor Information Manual). A completed qualification questionnaire may be submitted to an Agency Chief Contracting Officer at any time, unless otherwise indicated, and action (approval or denial) shall be taken by the agency within 90 days from the date of submission. Any denial or revocation of pre-qualified status can be appealed to the Office of Administrative Trials and Hearings (OATH). Section 3-10 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules describes the criteria for the general use of pre-qualified lists. For information regarding specific pre-qualified lists, please visit www.nyc.gov/selltonyc.

NON-MAYORAL ENTITIES

The following agencies are not subject to Procurement Policy Board Rules and do not follow all of the above procedures: City University, Department of Education, Metropolitan Transportation Authority, Health & Hospitals Corporation, and the Housing Authority. Suppliers interested in applying for inclusion on bidders lists for Non-Mayoral entities should contact these entities directly at the addresses given in the Vendor Information Manual.

PUBLIC ACCESS CENTER

The Public Access Center is available to suppliers and the public as a central source for supplier-related information through on-line computer access. The Center is located at 253 Broadway, 9th floor, in lower Manhattan, and is open Monday through Friday from 9:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., except on legal holidays. For more information, contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services at (212) 341-0933 or visit www.nvc.gov/mocs.

ATTENTION: NEW YORK CITY MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Join the growing number of Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (M/WBEs) that are competing for New York City's business. In order to become certified for the program, your company must substantiate that it: (1) is at least fifty-one percent (51%) owned, operated and controlled by a minority or woman and (2) is either located in New York City or has a significant tie to New York City's business community. To obtain a copy of the certification application and to learn more about this program, contact the Department of Small Business Services at (212) 513-6311 or visit www.nyc.gov/sbs and click on M/WBE Certification and Access.

PROMPT PAYMENT

It is the policy of the City of New York to pay its bills promptly. The Procurement Policy Board Rules generally require that the City pay its bills within 30 days after the receipt of a proper invoice. The City pays interest on all late invoices. However, there are certain types of payments that are not eligible for interest; these are listed in Section 4-06 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules. The Comptroller and OMB determine the interest rate on late payments twice a year: in January and in July.

PROCUREMENT POLICY BOARD RULES

ACCO Agency Chief Contracting Officer

The Rules may also be accessed on the City's website at www.nyc.gov/selltonyc

COMMON ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THE CR

The CR contains many abbreviations. Listed below are simple explanations of some of the most common ones appearing in the CR:

AMT	Amount of Contract
CSB	Competitive Sealed Bid including multi-step
CSP	Competitive Sealed Proposal including multi-s
CR	The City Record newspaper
DP	Demonstration Project
DUE	Bid/Proposal due date; bid opening date
\mathbf{EM}	Emergency Procurement
FCRC	Franchise and Concession Review Committee
IFB	Invitation to Bid
IG	Intergovernmental Purchasing
LBE	Locally Based Business Enterprise
M/WBE	Minority/Women's Business Enterprise
NA	Negotiated Acquisition
OLB	Award to Other Than Lowest Responsive
	Bidder/Proposer
PIN	Procurement Identification Number
PPB	Procurement Policy Board
PQL	Pre-qualified Vendors List
RFEI	Request for Expressions of Interest
RFI	Request for Information
RFP	Request for Proposals
RFQ	Request for Qualifications
SS	Sole Source Procurement
ST/FED	Subject to State and/or Federal requirements

KEY TO METHODS OF SOURCE SELECTION

CSB

The Procurement Policy Board (PPB) of the City of New York has by rule defined the appropriate methods of source selection for City procurement and reasons justifying their use. The CR procurement notices of many agencies include an abbreviated reference to the source selection method utilized. The following is a list of those methods and the abbreviations used:

Competitive Sealed Bidding including multi-step

	Special Case Solicitations/Summary of
	Circumstances:
CSP	Competitive Sealed Proposal including multi-ste
CP/1	Specifications not sufficiently definite
CP/2	Judgement required in best interest of City
CP/3	Testing required to evaluate
CB/PQ/4	
CP/PQ/4	CSB or CSP from Pre-qualified Vendor List/
	Advance qualification screening needed
DP	Demonstration Project
SS	Sole Source Procurement/only one source
RS	Procurement from a Required Source/ST/FED
NA	Negotiated Acquisition
	For ongoing construction project only:
NA/8	Compelling programmatic needs
NA/9	New contractor needed for changed/additional
	work
NA/10	Change in scope, essential to solicit one or limite

number of contractors

NA/11	Immediate successor contractor required due to
	termination/default
	For Legal services only:
NA/12	Specialized legal devices needed; CSP not
	advantageous
WA	Solicitation Based on Waiver/Summary of
	Circumstances (Client Services / CSB or CSP only)
WA1	Prevent loss of sudden outside funding
WA2	Existing contractor unavailable/immediate need
WA3	Unsuccessful efforts to contract/need continues
IG	Intergovernmental Purchasing (award only)
IG/F	Federal
IG/S	State
IG/O	Other
$\mathbf{E}\mathbf{M}$	Emergency Procurement (award only):
	An unforeseen danger to:
EM/A	Life
EM/B	Safety
EM/C	Property
EM/D	A necessary service
AC	Accelerated Procurement/markets with significant
	short-term price fluctuations
SCE	Service Contract Extension/insufficient time;
	necessary service; fair price
	$Award\ to\ Other\ Than\ Lowest\ Responsible\ \&$
	$Responsive\ Bidder\ or\ Proposer/Reason$
	(award only)
OLB/a	anti-apartheid preference
OLB/b	local vendor preference
OLB/c	recycled preference

HOW TO READ CR PROCUREMENT NOTICES

 $OLB/d \quad other: (specify)$

Procurement notices in the CR are arranged by alphabetically listed Agencies, and within Agency, by Division if any. The notices for each Agency (or Division) are further divided into three subsections: Solicitations, Awards; and Lists & Miscellaneous notices. Each of these subsections separately lists notices pertaining to Goods, Services, or Construction.

Notices of Public Hearings on Contract Awards appear at the end of the Procurement Section.

At the end of each Agency (or Division) listing is a paragraph giving the specific address to contact to secure, examine and/or to submit bid or proposal documents, forms, plans, specifications, and other information, as well as where bids will be publicly opened and read. This address should be used for the purpose specified unless a different one is given in the individual notice. In that event, the directions in the individual notice should be followed.

The following is a SAMPLE notice and an explanation of the notice format used by the CR.

SAMPLE NOTICE:

POLICE

m27-30

DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH SERVICES

■ SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

BUS SERVICES FOR CITY YOUTH PROGRAM - Competitive Sealed Bids- PIN# 056020000293 - DUE 04-21-03 AT 11:00 A.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

NYPD, Contract Administration Unit, 51 Chambers Street, Room 310, New

York, NY 10007. Manuel Cruz (646) 610-5225

York, NY 10007. Manuel Cruz (646) 610-5225.	
ITEM	EXPLANATION
POLICE DEPARTMENT	Name of contracting agency
DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH SERVICES	Name of contracting division
■ SOLICITATIONS	Type of Procurement action
Services (Other Than Human Services)	Category of procurement
BUS SERVICES FOR CITY YOUTH PROGRAM	Short Title
CSB	Method of source selection
PIN # 056020000293	Procurement identification number
DUE 04-21-03 AT 11:00 am	Bid submission due 4-21-03 by 11:00 am; bid opening date/time is the same.
Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents; etc.	Paragraph at the end of Agency Division listing providing Agency contact information
	NYPD, Contract Administration Unit 51 Chambers Street, Room 310 New York, NY 10007. Manuel Cruz (646) 610-5225.
•	Indicates New Ad

Date that notice appears in The City